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Abou

The Health and Safety Commission
{HSC) is responsible for regulating,
health and safety in Grear Britain,
The Health and Safery Executive (H5E)
and local government are the enforcing
authorities who work in suppaort of
the Commission.

HSE looks after health and safety
in nuclear instalations and Mmines,
factores, farms, hospitals and schools,
ofishone gas and oil installations, onshore
chemical plants, the gas grid, and many
other aspects of the pratection both of
workers and the public. Local authorities
(LAs) are responsible to HSC for
enforcement in offices, shops and otfer
paris of the services sacion

The Departrment for Work and
Pensions ([DWP) sponsors HSC/E. The
Rt Hon John Hutton is the Sacratary of
State for Work and Pensions. In January
2007, Lord McKenzia of Luton became
DWP's Pariamentary Linder Secratary
(Lords) with responsibility for work-
related health and safety. Lord Philip
Hunt of Kings Heath OBE previously held
the post.

For further information about
us, pleasa refer to the Management
commentary (pages 6—14) or visit our
website at www. hse.gov.uk.

us

The Health and Safety Commission

Bill Callaghan [Chair

Sandy Blair CEE

Danny Carrigan

Judith Donovan CEE

Prof Sayeed Khan

John Longwaorth

Hugh Robertson

Elizabeth Snape MEE

John Spanswick CEE

New commissioner:

6l

Robin Dahlberg
[appointrant
commenced
1 Apnl 2007)

Past commissionar:

Margaret Burns CBE
{appointment ended
31 March 2007)

Yo can find biographies for each of the
Commissionars on our website at:
wiwnw.hse. gov.uk aboutus Tsc!
commissioners. htm.

The Health and Safety Executive

Geoffrey Podger
Chief Executive

‘ja

ﬂ Justin McCracken
l-:.:
i

Deputy Cheef Executive
(Operations)

Jonathan Rees
Deputy Chief Executive
(Folicy)

You can get a copy of the register of
interests relating to mambers of the

Haalth and Safety Commission and the
Health and Safety Exacutive by contacting
the HSC Secretaniat at: Rose Court,

2 Southwark Bridge, London SE1 9HS;
or by phoning 020 7717 B611.
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Chair’s.....

In 2000, in my first foreword as
chair of HSC, I drew attention to the
Revitalising Health and Safety strategy
and the national targets for 2010,

In this, my last foreword, I can

report substantial progress towards
those rargets.

| can also report major achievements
owver the past year in delivering our
strategy. HSC/E is committed to being
a better reguiator aiming to be the
best. Our Simpilification Plan will reduce
administrative burdens on business and
improve health and safety outcomes by
making regulations easier to understand
and implement. | am particularly
pleased to have helped communicate
our proportionate approach to risk and
regulation. Our business is about saving
lves, not stopping them.

However, our achievements should
not blind us to the challenges around
our work. | highlighted three in my 2000
foreword: the need to engage batter
with small firms; to raise awareness of
occupational health issues; and to work
closehy with our kocal authority partners,
Despite the progress we have made,
these challanges remain and others
come to the fore, ranging from regulating
major hazard industrnes (such as nuchear,
«0ll and chemicals) to promoting health
and well-being at work,

Moraover, we cannot take recent
safety improvements for granted. Indeed,
there are worrying signs of an increased
level of fatalities in the construction
industry. The changing strectuns of
industry and the labour market are also
relevant, with the growth of hazardous
industries such as recycling, and a
mose diverse workforce including rmany
migrant workars,

We can meet these challenges first
through prontisation and the most
effective and efficient use of rescurces,
and secondly through closer and mora

4

productive partnership working. My
colleagues on the Commission can help
strengthen partnerships in the workplace,
with kocal authorities and with other
stakeholders. Thase include the devohed
administrations and | would Bke to thank
Margaret Burns, who stood down in
March this year after nine years as a
Commissionear, for her work in developing
partnership in Scotland.

Finally, | would like to thank my
Commission colleagues for their support
and hard work over the past year and
pay tribute to the work of HSE staff, ably
led by Geoffrey Podger and the Board
of H3E.

Mext year | hope that my successor
will be able to introduce the report of
a combined HSC and HSE. However,
whatever the structure, we depend on
the skilts, professionalism and dedication
of HSE staff. t has been a pleasure and
an honour to work with them,

o

Bill Callaghan Chairman
Health and Safety Commission
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@
C hl ef Executive’s foreword

It has been another good year for

HSE, with generally favourable
movements towards achieving our
targets as set out in this Report. As

in previous years, we achieved this
through close collaboration with

local authority colleagues and with
employers and trade unions. HSE staff’s
own achievement should, however, be
recognised, not least as the organisarion
had to adapt to a righter budgetary
situation, which requires us to lose
some 250-350 posts by the end of
2007/08.

Equally, the welcome improvemants
in health and safety are not found
everywhare. In the offshore ol industry,
for example, we have significant
concerns about personnel competence
and the effect of againg plant. We cannot
afford to be complacent in any sector;
gains in heaith and safety can all too
easily be reversed without continued
gffart from all imiohed.

Finally, | should once again like 1o
thank the HSC Commissioners for their
support, both to me personally and the
organisation as a whole. Margaret Burns'’
departure from HSC has meant that we
have lost an ever-constructive adviser.
Later this year we will sustain a further
loss with the retirement of the HSC Chair,
Bill Callaghan. Bill will be greatly missed,
not least for his unswenving integrity,
commitment and wisdom.

(53@«:%;3 -r;; e

\"'H_.i

Geoffrey Podger CB Chief Executive
Health and Safety Executive

(4]
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Management o,

The Health and Safety
Commission and Executive

The Health and Safeey at Work etc Act
1974 established the Health and Safery
Commission (H5C) and the Health
and Safery Execunive (HSE) and
provided for the continuation of the
Employment Medical Advisory Service
(EMAS). HSC came into being on

1 October 1974 and appointed HSE
on 1 January 1975, H5C and HSE

are starutory nm1-{l1.:pnrtm|:m;,1| public
bodies, performing their functions on
behalf of the Crown. Responsibility
for HSC and HSE rransferred to the
Deparement for Work and Pensions
(DYP) in July 2002,

The primary function of the
Commission and the Executive is to
protect the health, safety and welfars of
empioyees and safeguard others who
may be exposed to risks from work
activities. This includes proposing new
laws and standards, conducting and
SpONSONnG research, promoting training
and providing information and advice.
H3C provides stralegic direction for
Great Britain's health and safety system,
including HSE and local authorntes (LAs).
The Commassion reports to the Secretary
of State for Work and Pensions, and to
other Secretaries of State,

HSC also has powers to;

B approve and issue codes of practice,
with the consent of the Secratary of
State, subject to consultation with
government deparimeants and other
organisations:;

B make agresments with any
govermment department or person
to perform HSC or HSE functions on
HSC/E's behalf;

B make agreements with ary minister,
govemment department, or public
authority for HSC to perform

functions on their behalf;

B give mandatony guidance to LAS on
enforcement; and

W direct HSE or authorise any other
person to investigate and report
on accidents or other matters and,
subject to regulations made by the
relevant minister, direct inguiries to
be held.

The Commission has adopted a
code of practice, which the Chair and
Commissioners follow. This conforms
to Cabinet Office guidance. It sets out
the responsibilities of the Chair and the
corparate and individual responsibilities
of the Commissioners,

HSE advizes and assists the
Commizsion in its functions. Together
with LAs, H3E has day-to-day
responsibility for enforcing health and
safety law, investigating accidents,
hcansing and approving standards
in partcularly hazardous areas and
commissioning research,

The strategic framework

Cur wision is to gain recognition of health

and safety as a cornerstone of chvilised
socety, and with that, to achieve a
record of workplace health and safaty
that leads the world.

Our mission is, working with local
authorities, to profect people’s haalth
and safaty by ensuring that risks in
the changing workplace ane property
controlied.

HSC's Strategy for workplace health
and safety to 2070 and beyond [waw,
hse.gov.uk/aboutushsc/strategy.
htm) sets out the strategic direction
for achigving health and satety
improvements in Greal Britaan,

The Strategy’s four key themes are:

Developing closer partnerships.

2 Halping people to banafit from
effective health and safety
management and a sensible haalth
and safety culture, whera we are best
placed 1o reduce workplace injury
and ill health,

3 Focusing on our core business and
the right interventions where we are
best placed 1o reduce workplace
injuny and ill heatth.

4 Communicating the vision.

sk

Waork-related health and
safety targets

In 2000, HSC and the government
published the Revitalsng Health and
Safety (RHS) Strategy (www. hse.
gov.ukirevitalising/strategy.btm). This
included three national targets to improve
occupational health and safety outcomes
by 2010,
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Table 1 Resitaiising Health and Safely targets

Indicator Baselines Results (2005/08)° | Target (2009/10) Assessment®
The ingidenca rate of fatal and major injury | 117.3 110.7 105.6 Mot on course
par 100 000 workers {1999/200:0) (109 reduction)

The incidence rate of work-related il health | 2200 1600° 1800 On course
per 100 000 workers' (2001 /02) (20% reduction)

The number of working days lost from work-| 1.8 g 1.3 Probably on
related injury and il health per worker (2000-02) (30% reduction) COourse

! Based on sef-reporting surveys. Assessment of progress will also use other sources
2 HSC will publish tha 200607 resulis for thess indicators in the Health and safely stalistics in Movember 2007
3 The range of possibiities (95% confidence interval) for this result is from 1500 to 1800
4 The range of possibiities (95% confidence interval) for this result is from 1.2 to 1.4

5 For mone details please see www.nsa.govul/statistics/targats. htm

For commentary on the latest occupational health and safety statistics, see Fit for work, Fit for ife, Fit for tomorow (Fit3) (page 20).

As part of Spending Review 2004, DWP agreed a new work-related health and safety Public Senice Agreement (PSA] with

HM Treasury:

By 2008 improve health and safety outcomes in Great Britain through progressive improvement in the

control of risks in the workplace.

We measure our progress towards the PSA against six targets, grouped under the two main areas of HSGC/E's work: occupational
health and safety (workers' injury, ill health and resulting days lost) and major hazards (precursor incidents in the nuclear, ofishore
and onshore sectors). The occupational health and safety PSA targets are based on the same indicators as the RHS targets, but

work from a different baseline year. They represent a three-year slice of the full ten-year targets.

Table 2 Occupational health and safaty PS4 largets

Indicator Baselines (2004/05) | Results (2005/06)° | Target (2007/08) | Assessment
The incidence rate of fatal and major 118.6 110.7 115.0 On course
injury per 100 000 workers {3% reduction)
The incidence rate of work-related ill health | 1800 16008 1700 On coursa
per 100 000 workers' (6% reduction)
The number of warking days lost from work-| 1.5 132 1.4 On course
related injury and ill health per worker (9% reduction)
! Based on self-reporting sunvays, Assessment of progress will alzo use other sources
2 S will publish the 2006/07 results for thess indicators in the Health and safety sfatistics in Movernber 2007
1 Subject to a 95% confidence interval — see Tabla 1 for detaits
Table 3 Major hazards PSA targels
Indicator Baselines (2001/02) | Results (2006/07) | Target (2007/08) Assessment
The number of events reported by licence | 143 126 132 On course
holders, which HSE's Muclear Installations (7.5% reduction)
Inspectorate judges as having the potential
to challenge a nuclear safety system
The number of major and significant 113 73 62 _ Mot on course
hydrocarbon releases in the offshore oil (45% reduction)
and gas sector
The number of relevant RIDDOR' -reportable) 179 158 152 . On course
dangerous occurrences in the onshore (15% reduction)
sector

' Beporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995
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Full details on the target are availabla
in the PSA Technical Mote (www.hse,
gov. ukaboutus plans/sr2004. htm).
Commentary on the latest FSA results
i5 in the performance section, under
the Fit3 and Major Hazards Strategic
Programmes (page 9). DWP publishes
periormance data against all its PSAs
in ite Departmental and Autumn
Performance Reports (waww.chwp. govuk/
pubhcations/dwp2007/dn)7 and www,
chwp.gov.uk/publications/dwp' 2006/
auturnnreport).

Key activities

There are many different areas of

work that contribute to delivering

oL vision, mission and objectives

{including the targets). W

grouped the main workstreams

within our Strategic Programmes.,

During 2006/07 there were;

B two Strategic Delivery Programmes:
- Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for
tomorrow [Fit3) focuses on key
hazard and indusiry sectors to
deliver the occupational haalth and
safety PSA targets; and

- Major Hazards regulates and
assures safe management of key
major hazard industries to reduce
the likeflihood of catastrophic
incidents;

B four Strategic Enabling Programmes,
which focused on key elemenis of
HSC's Strategy, kick-starting new
activities to support the work of Fit3
and Major Hazards:

- Loecal Authorities and HSE
Working Together: building
a partnership with LAs, to
maka the best use of HSE's
and LAs' respective strengths
in tackling national, regiconal
and local priorities;

- Worker Involvement: sacuring
mora and better worker
invahvement in health and safety
rigk management by raising
awarensss, nfluencing attitudes
and changing behaviours;

- Business Involvement: promating
the business benefits of well-
managed health and safely; and

- Enforcement: Ensuring that
HSE and LAs make best use of

formal enforcement in the delivery
of health and safaty priorities
alongside the enabling of justice.

The programme working
arrangements for the first three of
theze areas have now come to an
end. However, this work remains
important and will continue as
part of HSE's normal business,

HSE cammes out a range of other
essential activities that complement the
Strategic Programmes and HSE's long-
term capability. These includea:

B enforcing the law, which remains
one of HSE's (and the local
authorities”) key intenventions. Our
inspactors make a vital contribution
to delivering HSC's Strategy by
mspeciing workplaces, investigating
accidents and complaints, offering
achvice and guidance, and,
where appropriate, taking formal
enforcement action. HSC publishes
details of prosecutions taken and
nofices served by HSE annually in
Heaith and safety statistics;

B developing policy and ensuring
that HSE remains an exemgplar
of modem regulation. The Policy
Programme is responsible for key
areas of health and safety policy
{including major hazards);

B communicating efiectivaly. The

Communications Directorata
and Comrmumnications Dalivery
Saendce provide HSC/E's madia
refations, stakeholder managament,
campaigns, avents, online goods
and senvices, paper publications and
effective intemal communications;

B using science to identify the
causes of health and safety
incidents, develop solutions to
risks in the workplacs, test the
effectiveness of our interventions,
and identify new and emarging
risks. HSE leads a major research
and support programme, camed
out by the Health and Safety
Laboratory (HSL) and a wide
varety of other organisations;

B providing corporate services and
systems for HSE and, in doing
s, making best use of available
resources. These activities (for
example, personnel functions,

managing accommaodation, _
performanca and financizl |
management) are critical to HSE's |
continued operation and succass.

It is important to make sure that
HSCYE fulfils each of the roles sat out in
the Health and Safaty at Work etc Act
1974 and that we can account for use
of bath our statutory powers and of the
public funds we receive. During 2008/07,
we identified four key business areas
that cover the full scope of our work and
provide a ussful framework for planning:
B delvering health and safety cutcomes;
enabling justce;
support to govermment: and
demonstrating public accountability

To find cut how HSE is structured
to deliver these business areas (plus
our corporate support functions),
see Annex 1,

Performance in 2006/07

The HSC Business Plan 2006/07

(www. hse.gov.ul/aboutus/plans/
hzcplans/0607/pland607 pdf) set out
how we intended Lo

meet the Public Service Agreement
(FSA);

secure and maintain public confidence;
provide value for money,

support wider govermment goals; and
continue to meet our statutory
obligations.

The following is a summary of HSE's
performance against the Business Plan
during the year. More datail is provided
on pages 15-26,

The Strategic Programmes

Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for
tomorrow (Fit3)

Fit3 has continued 10 perform well
during 2006/07, not only in terms of
prograss towards the RHS and PSA
targets, but also in defivering wider health
and safety benefits. HSC's Haalth and
safaly statistics 2005/06 (www.hse.gov.
uk/statistics/index. htm) show significant
falls in the work-related il health rate and
numbers of working days lost. Tha Ft3
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team hopes that its continuing efforts
on inttiatives such as Workplace Health
Connect, the Belter Backs campaigns
and workshops to improve organisations’
management of stress, will help maintain
these positive trends,

The 2005/06 statistics also showed
a reduction in the rate of fatal and major
injuries, but the picture here is less
clear-cut. Although the indicator has
fallen over the last two years, it shows no
clear trend since 199972000 (the RHS
basaling). Injury rates have continued to
improwve in the production sector (which
HSE has targeted and engaged), the
numiper of fatal injuries is the lowest an
racord, and major injuries to employeas
e to falls from height ane down by
12% on 2004/05. However, slipping and
tripping incidents (the mMast Common
cause of major injuries) have remained
constant and major injury rates in the
service sactor continue to increasa. Fit3
has taken steps to reinvigorate its work
on slips and trips, including plans for
an increase in field resource devoted to
this issue, batter training for inspectors
and a revamped website. Wa are also
encouraged by the commitment that LAs
have shown to HSE's priorities during
200607 - for example, the Devon Sip
Biitz. which invohwed over 500 visits to
service sector premises by LA officers
and effective use of local media,

Major Hazards

The Major Hazards Strategic Programme
has continued to perfonm wall dunng
2006/07, despite the increasing
demands placed upon its resources

by the government’s Energy Review,
the implications of nuclear new

build and continuing waork related 1o
HSE’s investigation of the Buncefieid
incicent. Catastrophic incidents such
as Buncefield remain rare events and
precursor incidents in the onshore,
offshiore and nuckear industries continue

o show a dowrward trend since the
base year (2001/02). HSE remains on
track to deliver both the onshaore and
nuclear PSA targets. Howewver, precursor
incidants in the ofishone sector have risen
slighthy abowve the target level. Mumbars
at this level are vulnerable to statistical
fluctuation, but the indicator seems to
reflect the recent upsurge in ofishore
activity, which has exacerbated problems
with & lack of competent and trained
personnel in the industry, ageing offshore
plant and equipment, and mantenance
issues. HSE continuas to wiork closaly
with the offshore industry to addrass
these issues.

The Major Hazards portfolio also
inciudas the Cross-Cutting Programme,
which aims 1o improve the consistency,
efficiency and effectiveness of HSE'S
major hazards work. During 200607, the
Programme published new guidance on
managing human behaviour to prevent
miagor accidents and sought to engage
more effectively with large organizations,
such as Serco.

Local Authorities and HSE

Working Together

The Local Authorities and HSE Working
Together Strategic Programme concluded
during 2006/07, having substantialy
met the obhjectives in the "Statament of
Intent” agreed between HSC/E and local
governmant bockes in 2004. With the
relationship between Las and HSC/E
now much improved, and LAs showing
strong commitment to HSG/E's strategic
priorities, we have switched our focus to
fiedd-based delivery.

The LA/HSE partnership teams
have been crucial in encouraging and
eo-grdinating partnership activities and
helping to shape LA/HSE plans to meet
HSC/E's priorities. Delivering these
pricrities relies heavily on significant
LA involvernent and there is stilla
challenge to ensure this commitment
is sustained. Good communication
betweean HSE and LAs is also imporant
to sustaining an effective partnership.
The content of our extranet (an M-
basad tool for shanng information)
has expanded hugely this year.

Setting governance and liaison
arrangements in place to sustain the
partnership has bean a key part of the
programme’s work. HSC met with the

Local Government Panel (LGP), which
comprisas elected LA members from
Engiand, Scotland and Wales, for the
first time in May 2006. The HSCALGP
fonem meets twice a year to discuss
local, central and devolved government
issues that impact on health and
safety regulation. it also reviews the
effectiveness and performance of

the partnership.

LAs have made good use of HSE's
science and technology funding schame
to investigate a range of issues across
the spectrum of activities for which LAs
are tha enforcing authority. Work has
alimaost finished piloting *flexible warrants’,
to allow LA and HSE inspectors to lake
enforcement action in each other's fields
of responsibility.

Enforcement

The Enforcement Sirategic Frogramme
has made good progress on its three
central workstraams, two of wiach have
now moved to implementation. The
programme has developed and trialed
measures to mprove the efficisncy

and effectiveness of investigation

and prosecution activities. It has also
helped position HSE's and LAs' formal
enforcerment activity to support delivery
of the Fit3 Strategic Programma and
provided direction in preventatne
enforcement work. The programme

has been implementing an enforcement
communications strategy to oplimise and
sustain — through communications — the
ripple and deterrent effect of health and
safaty enforcement activity

Business Involvement
The Business Invohement
Strategic Programme ¢losed at
the enc of 2006/07, having made
substantial progress towards
its inftial aims and having fully
establizhed s key worksireams.
Through the Large Onganisations
Partnership Pilot (LOPP — run jointly
with Local Authorities Coordinators of
Regulatory Services), the programime
has sought to improve HSE's and LAS'
engagement with large organisations,
encowrage better management of
health and safaty, and create a forum
for sharing best practice. Dunng
2D0GMT, the organisations participating
in LOPP have started to publicise their



Hesplth and Sakety Commission Arnual Repor and the Healih and Safety Commission/Executive Accounts 200607

action plans and have held their first
plenary event, invohing HSE and LA
staff, to review progress. Following the
Commission’s instruction, the business
irvolverment team has also been
supporting an Institute of Directors-

led stesring group in developing new
guidance for directors on their health and
safety responsibilities,

Thi Small Business Trade
Association Forum, sat up to ensure
that HSC and HSE take the needs
and concemns of small businesses
info account during policy making,
has continued to provide a valuabla
contribution to HEE's worl, It is chaired
by Judith Donovan and now comprises
more than 40 member organisations,
coverng over 1.4 million businesses
Thase activities, and the programme’s
other workstreams, will continue into
2007/08 as part of HSE's mainsiream
policy work,

Worker Involvement

Since its creation in early 2005,

the Worker Involvernent Strategic

Programme has provided the focal

point for HSE's afforts in implermenting

the Commission’s strategy as it

relates to worker involvemant. The

programme’s achievements include:;

B producing firmer evidence for the
effectiveness of worker involvemant
as a driver for improving health
and safety;

B publizhing guidance for emplovers on
how to irvobve workers;

B improving the tools and information
available to workers and safety
represeniatives on HSE's weabsite;
and

B developing guidance for HSE and
LA inspectors on encouraging mora
workar involvement.

The pregramme teamn has also
worked affectively with colleagues across
HSE to build worker involvement into
oL wicker activities, for example, the
Batter Backs 2008 campaign adopted
worker invalvernent as one of its key
themes and included tools for safety
representatives. Having kick-started
HSE's worker involvement workstreams,
the programeme closed at the end of
2006707, Like business invohement,
this work will continue as part of HSE's
mainstream policy and delveny.

i[¢]

Essential underpinning work

Policy

HSE’s policy role covers the whols range
of health and safety issues, including
public safety. In tha past year, wea have
maintamed our position as a leader in
better regulation and as an evidence-
based organisation. In particular, HSC/E
was the first governmeant body to publish
its plan for reducing the administrative
burdens of regulation, and our advice

to the government during the Energy
Review was based on a comprahensive
review of the evidence (sea page 24),

HSC/E has also respondad
effectively to requests for advice from the
government. As a publicly accountable
organisation, wea have also provided
Parfiament, the media and othar
stakeholders with prompt information on
any pokcy topsc within our remit.

Communications

HSE continues to use communication
activity s an intenvantion to delver
improved health and safety outcomes.
2006/07 saw two successful publicity
campaigns, targeting bad backs and
accidents resulting from falls. We
developed and published a new HSC
performance repon ‘Measumng up... ',
to complement this Annual Report, and
redesigned the HSC Mewslatter available
10 businesses and stakeholders through
subscription (www.hse gov.uk/pubns/
books/newslatter.him).

Science

HSE has continued to implement the
HSC Science Slrategy 2005-2008
[www.hse.gov.uk/research/content/
strategy0508.pdf), applying high quality
science to support delivery of the PSA
targets. The Office of Science and
Innovation has recently endersad the
quality of HSE's science (www.dli.gov.
ukfilasfile37 104, pof).

During 2006/07, we have been
developing new science planning and
governance amangements to improve
support to the Strategic Programmes,
including faciitating the Programmes’
davelopmeant of more robust evidence
bases. HSE's new Chief Scientific
Adviser has agreed research priorities
for 200708, following intermal
consultation. Establishing the new
HSE Board Science Sub-group dunng
2007708 will further improve oversight
and direction of HSE's science, including
the planning, commissioning and
rmanagement of research.

Dwuring 2006/07, HSE spent
£38.6 million on commissionad
science and technology. This compares
with £44.5 million spent in 200506,
£1.5 million of the scence and
technology budget was transferred
to the Office of Rail Regulation
(ORR) during 2006/07.

Of the £38.6 million spent this year,
£9.3 million was spent on research and
£1.6 million on support commissioned
with external bodies. £27.7 million
was spent with HSL on research plus
scientific and technical support. In
addition, Nuclear Directorate (WD)
spent £2.8 million on research and
support (£0.3 milion of which was with
H3L). ND recovers the majority of its
science and technology expendituna
from nuclear bcensees, Also, HSL spent
£2 2 million on extramural research
and support. H3L and extramural
contractors carried out 90 research
reports on newly completed projects,
which HSE published on its website.

Efficiency

The HSE Board has set a target of

£50 million efficiency savings to be

delivered by March 2008, Progress in

2006/07 enabled us to achieve our in-

year target of £15 million and keep well

on course. Key achievements included:

B implementing a new electranic
human resource (g-HR) senice;

B implementing the new Electronic
Document and Records
Management [EDRM) system; and

B developing new ways of working to
IMprove senice delivery.
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Performance management

HSC/E's main tools for managing
corporate performance are quarterly
repors against the Balanced Scorecard,
the PSA and the Corporate Risk
Management Plan. Further details on our
performance management arrangements
are in the Statement on Internal Control
(pages 40-43).

Key stakeholder relationships

Stakeholders are organisations or
indmiciuals outside HSE who can have

a significant influence on occupational
health and safety. HSC's Strategy
emphasises the necessity of ‘developing
closer partnerships® to achieve

its ambitious targets. Stakeholder
engagement, including the building of
partnerships, is therefore a key part of
HSE's corporate communications activity.

We co-ordinate engagement
with our key corporate stakehciders
(including politicians, unions, business
and safety organisations) centralhy,
through a network of lead contacts. Our
Strategic Programmes analyse and plan
engagement with their own stakeholders.
HSE also engages with a wide range of
stakeholders at a regional lavel.

The Health and Safety
Commissioners play a key role in
stakeholdar engagement, by taking an
ambassadonial role and participating in
a range of activities, such as speaking
at conferances and representing HSC at
meetings and events. Over the course
of the year, Commissioners have spoken
at or attended over 50 events, including
the NHS Employers' Conferencs,
fringe meetings at the political party
conferences, the annual Scoltish Hazards
Conferance and a heaith and safety event
for London elected members.

Our aim is 1o see our stakeholders
promoting HSE's corporate messages,
managing their own health and safety
well, and publicty championing HSE and
its worl,

Workforce matters

HSE values its people and operates
policies and systems to ensure the

health, safety, welfare, development and
equal treatment of its staff.

HSE publishes staff in post figures for
each of its Directorates/Divisions at wew.
hse.gov.uk/aboutus/repod sistaff.him.

Recruitment

HEE took over recruitrment for HSL from

Septernber 2006, During 2006/07, we:

B recruited 14 staff externally = nine
to HSE and five to H5L. Thisis a
significant reduction on recent years,
resulting from a conscious effort to
rein back our expenditure during
2006/07. However, we ran internal
exarcises to redirect existing staff
resources into front-line actnity,
resulting in 27 new trainee inspecions
and eight existing inspectors (with
major hazard experance) who are
now training to inspect nuciaar
premises. We have also made thres
senior civil senvice appointrmants
at HBL.

B commenced 18 UK and five
overseas secondments and loans
intofout of HSE; and

B appointed nine fixed-tarm staff {six
inte HSE and three into HSL)

Staff training and development

During the year we:

B arranged training for 1750 staff
at over 200 events. Our canlrally
provided training received satistaction
rates of aver 95%:;

m piloted a successiul programime
of 'bite-sized' training, These were
1% to 2 hour sassions focusing on
performance management, staft
developrment and leadership. We ara
currently reviewing the feasibiity of
rofling these out further; and

B continued o develop a new
integrated work-basad programme
for trainee inspectors with Warwick
University. Both Warwick University
and HSE will deliver this training,
which meaans staff will nd longas
nead 1o study away from work for
extended penods,

Health and safety in HSE
lssues relating to the health and safety of
our workforce can be found in Annex 2.

Diversity

In 2006/07 HSE camied out research
across a range of diversity issues,

the main cutcome of which was the
publication of a Disability Equality
Scheme and a Gender Equality
Scheme, In addition, we updated our
Race Equality Scheme. The schemes,
available on HSE's websile (www.hse.
gov.uk/aboutus/diversityfindex.htm), set
priofities for the next three years and ane
supported by a more detaibad diviarsity
action plan,

A Caolin Douglas (Board Champion &n
Race Diversity) with Dr Siddigqui from
the Muslim Council at a Black History
Month event, held in Rose Court
during November

To help take forward diversity in

2006/07, we:

B assessad our human resource (HE)
policies and proceduras for their
relevance to diversity;

B established closer working
refationships with HSE trade unions,
staff and staff networks by invohang
all parties in the development of the
aquality schames,

B issued a suite of prachical togts
for our staff to apply, including a
communications toolkit, a transkation
gtanclard and a diversity impact
assascment tool designed to boost
diversity mainstraaming into evenyday
HSE business and employment
practices;

B supported events held by the race,
gender and disability staff networks,
such as the Women's Network
Conference, the launch of a new
disability network ‘equal’ and the
Black History Month celebrations.
Workshops covening gender,
disability and age sensitivity and thair
relationship to health and safety were
held, while practical experience of
engaging black and ethnic minority
communities was also shared



Health and Safety Commission Annual Report and the Health and Salety Commission/Execulive Accounts 2006/07

Table 4 Total HSE staff in post by cocupational group!

01./04,2006

reconstructed

staff in post® 01/04/2006

(includes staff staff in post

transfered to ORR | (excluding staff

01/04/2003 | 01/04/2004 | 01/04/2005 | on 1 April 2006 - for | transferred to ORR | 01/04/2007

Occupational group | staff in post | stafl in post | staff in post | comparison only) on 1 April 2006) staff in post®
Front-line staff 1508 1551 1517 1543 1442 1405
(of which the (1508) (1483) (1404) (1421) (1328} (1312)
following are front-
line/operational
nspecions)
Inspectors working | 143 122 126 122 116 127
in functions other
than front-fne’
operational
Other professional | 1481 1358 13715 1470 1429 1326
or specialist staff
Other staff 1030 887 869 BS6 824 G690
(of which ara (84) (115) (100) (B8) (88) {4)
agency staff)
Total staff® 4162 a0g 3903 9 asn 3548

" A Bgures ana for full-time equivakent (FTE) stafi, rounded to the nearast whoks number and include agency/temporarny staff and secondees/doans
for whom HSE meats all or the majority of costs

* Reconstructed 'staff in post” figures at 01/04/2006 include staff whe transfered to the Office of Rail Regulation (ORR) on that date, when
responsibity for rail requiation health and safety matters transferred from HSE to ORR. Inclusion will enable direct comparison with previous

years” figures

* Statf in post figures at 1/04/2007 exclude stall in the Office for Civil Nuclear Safety (OCNS) and the UK Salequards Office who transferred from
the Department of Tracke and Industry 10 HSE on that dale. HSC/E's 2007/08 Annual Report will restate the staffing figures at 1/04/2007 o reflect
thedr inclusion. The figures also include four FTE staff who transfermed to HSE from DT1's Engineering Inspactorate on 02/10/2006 with the transfer
ol reguiatory functions around pubiic safety aspects of the alactricity distrbution network

*'Front-line stal” ncludes operational inspectors and, sinca 01/04/2004, other visiting staff who support delivary of key health and safety

MEessages

" From 01/04/2005 onwards, “other professional’spacialist stalf’ figuras have been reduced by the total for ‘other visiting staff’ (note 4) as follows:
68 for (1,/04/2004, 113 for 01/04/2005, 114 for 01/04/2006 and 93 for 01/04/2007. These staff ane already included in the “front-line staf” ne
* Total staff = the sum of all rows excepl "of which are front-ine/operational inspectors’ and "of which ana agency siaff’

through presentations;

B camied out research into career
prograssion issues for black and
minority ethnic staff to identify where
changas might be needed, which
will pe discussed with the Trade
Unions and MAGMET (Minority
Action Group MNetwork for staff) and
introduced in 2007/08.

W started 1o camy out equality
impact azsessments on major new
HR projects.

Tha diversity statistics fwww.hse.gov.
uk/aboutus/reports/diversity. hitm) show
that the levels of representation of
woman, black and minority ethnic staff,
and staff with disabilities have changed
little ower the last year. This is mainly due
to the tight confrals put on recruitment
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and promotion because of the fimancial
position, but also because it takes a

long time to bring about change. HSE is
committed to equality of opportunity for
all staff and to making HSE reflect the
diversity of the UK workiorce, and the
figures will be used to review the pricrities
in the published equality schemes
mentionad above.

Employee involvement

It is HSE's policy to consult the trade
unions represanting its staff as widahy

as possible to give them the opporiunity
to influence the development and
application of proposals relating to major
organisational and staffing changes.
There is a formal consultation structure
between HEE management and unions
within the Whitley system at both national

and local levels. The HSE Whitley Council
i5 the central forum for discussion of all
matters of concemn to HSE as a whale.
National Whitleys are held quarterly and
are chaired by the Chiaf Executive,

HSE consults and negotiates with
the trade unions about all issues affecting
the terms and conditions of employment
of staff.

Public interest and other

Openness

HSC befieves that public access to
health and safety information improves
understanding and strengthens
confidence in the health and safety
systemn. Details of HSC open meetings,
together with agendas, papers, minutes
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and those of its advisory committees and

| subcormmittees, are published on HSE'S
website, You can find further information
on HSC's commitment to openness at
www.hse.gov.uk/aboutushsc/openness.
htrm.

Sustainability

The following activities have helped to

make HSE more ermvironmentally friendly:

B HSE agreed a contract with the
Office of Government Commercea
in 2006/07 for the procurement of
utilities, which will guarantss that
HSE will be able to meet government
targets on procuring electricity from a
sustainable source.

m The British Standards Institution
confirned that, following changes
to the Ervironmental Management
System to incorporate the new
HSE Merseyside Centre, we had
achieved continued accraditation
(150 14001 ; 2004).

B The Carbon Trust visited three
HSE offices and conducted
comprehensive enengy Surveys
1o highlight potential energy, cost
and carbon savings. Wa will use
this information to identify best
practice across the estate and targel

,_-\\

‘_‘A&“k

CARBON
TRUST

Making business sense
of climate change

B The private finance initiative
contract at Redgrave Court
includes the provision to recycle
paper, cardboard, plastics, wood,
melals, and glass. We recycled
approximatedy 50% of all waste
produced in 2006/07.

B Video conferencing in HSE increased
in the calendar year 2006 by 43.7%.
The number of participants using the
gystem also increased by 47.14%.

B HSE staff participating in Bike Week
cycled a total of 1674 miles, saving
approximately 479 kg of CO..

Corporate governance

The relationship with our SpoNSoNng
depariment, DWF, and the framework
within which corporate governance
curently operates is set out in the
Management Statement (which replaced
HSC/E's Framework of Accountabiities
in December 2006) and a Financial
Memorandum (updated in 2004). You
can find the Financial Memdorandum at
www.hse gov.uk/aboutus/framework)
f01-a5.pdf, and the Management
Statament at www.hse.gov.uk/aboutus’
management/.

The Chair and members of HSC
[Commissioners) are appointed by
the Secretary of State and are drawn
from a wide range of backgrounds.
HSC meats monthly; its responsibilities
include setting the strategic direction for
HSG/E within the policy and resources
framework agreed with the responsibla
minister, and then challenging
performance against stratagic pricrties.

HSE, as the principal operating arm
of HSC, ensures that HSC's reguiatory
responsibilities, strategic activities and
decisions are camied out; and that HSC
iz updated regularty on performance
matters, including use of resources
and the management of risks. HSE
is led by its Board, which comprses
the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief
Executives for Operations and Policy
and the directors of its operational,
policy, research and corporate functions.
The HSE Board meets formally once a
month, supplemented by weekly video-
conferences. It decides on a range of
issues including strateqy, personnel and
rasoUnce issues and monitons progress
against targets,

The HSC Audit Committes suppors
the HSC Chair and HSE's Chief
Executive as Accounting Officers. It
advises tham on issues of governance,
risk, control and associated assurance
by providing an independent view
on appropriateness, adequacy and
overall value for money, Its memipership
comprises two Commissionars (one of
whom is chair and the other vice-chair)
and two independent non-executive
members. Tha Committee meats at least
three times a year.

HSE's Chief Executive makes
delegations on use Of resources annually
in writing to HSE's four main budget

holders: the Deputy Chief Executives
for Operations and Policy, the Director
of Resources and Planning, and the
Chief Scientific Adviser. The main budgest
hotders issue any further delegations
in writing.

In Decermber 2006, HSC published
a consultative document satting out
proposats for merging HSC and HSE into
a singhe unitary body. The consultation
period closed on 5 March 2007, The
overarching proposal, to merge HS0
and HSE, received a generally favourabie
response. HSC has agreed to the merger
in priciple and decided to invite: the
Minister to consult on detailed proposals
to conform to legislative requirements.

Forward look

How and where we work

An internal project has been set up to
look at how and whare wa work within
HSE. The Board is taking a broad look
at the working patterns and facilities hal
HSE needs to delver its business and
support staff into the futuna.

As a national regulatory, enforcement
and advisory body HSE neads to retain
a nationwida presence 1o have face to
face contact with dutyholders, to work
with our partners and 1o develop our
relationship with local authorities.

W are hooking 1o improve our use
of office space and pattemns of working
to bring substantial benefits in lerms
af quality of working life, improved
efficiency and reduced overheads. The
possibilities are many and varied: more
innovative use of office space, home-
working, and mobile working with ICT
support (especially for field staff), or a
combination that enables pecple o work
flexibly and effectively.

W want to free up staff time, and
reduce the demands on staff 1o travel
with the associated financial costs and
physical wear and tear.

We want to meet changing staff
expectations on careers and mobility,
s0 that we grow and refresh our talent,
better utilise opportunities for interchange
with other organisations, and ensure we
have a diverse workforce that reflects the
sociaty it senes.

How people contact HSE
People contact HSE through marny

13
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channels and at many points. Infoling,
Workplace Health Connect Adviceling,
the Incident Contact Cantre, local office
swilchboards, the Gas Safety Adviceling,
HSE Books and HSE's duty officer
system for emergency out of hours

calls all handie combinations of e-mails,
e-forms, fax, written comespondence
and tedephone calls. HSE has set up

an internal project to look at how these
senices can be provided differently to
rake thern both better for the user and
more efficienthy defivered. This project will
be fully ini Ene with the Transformational
Governmant agenda which puts the
sanice users at the heart of the system
and design senices around their needs.

Payments to suppliers

HSE is committed to the prompt
payment of bills for goods and services
receivec and is a signatory to the
principles of the Better Payment Practica
Code, issued by the Batter Payment
Practice Group. Payments are nommally
made as specified in the contract, If
there is no contractual provision or other
understanding, payment is dueg to be
made within 30 days of the receipt of

the goods or senvices or presentation

of a valid mvoice or similar demand,
whichever is later. HSE's overall
performance during 2006/07 was 98.8%
(2005/06 - 99.2%) of invoices paid within
the agreed credit period.

Introduction of the eura

HSE continues to maintain its
changeover planning and preparation
activities such that, in the event of a
decision o join the single European
currancy, the changes required 1o the
computer systems, busness systeams
and products will have been identified
and gquantified and we would be able to
meet the timascales set out in the Thind
Mational Changeover Plan.

Events after the balance sheet date
HEC/E's financial statements wene
authorised for issue by the Secretany of
State on 19 June 2007, On 1 April 2007:
HSE became the licensing authority
(AALA) under the Activity Cantres (Young
Person's Safety) Act 1995; and the
Office for Civil Muclear Safety transferred
from DT together with the UK
Safeguards Office.
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Pension liabilities

Details of pension costs etc are
contained in Mota 1{c) to HSC's
accounts, Note 10) and Mote 2 to HSE's
accounts and the remuneration report.

External auditors
The financial statements of the
Commission and the Exacutive are
audited under Schedule 2 paragraphs
14i2) and 20 of the Health and Safoty at
Work etc Act 1974 by the Comptroller
and Auditor General whose cedificate
and report appear on pages 44 and 45.
The cost of audit work was £84 000,
which related solely to audit senvices,

Financial position and results
for the year

HSE boosted spend in 2005506 (as
indicated in the HSC Annual Reports for
2004/05 and 2005/06) in the knowledge
that 2005/06 spending levels could

not be sustained. Tha plan was 1o

scale back from this historic high level

in 2006/07 and 2007/08. Howeaver, it
identified that it had enterad 2006/07

at the nsk of bang over committed and
with some unexpected cost increases
and therafore neaded to rein expenditune
back further than expected. HSE drew
up plans to achieve a balanced budget
and also agreed contingency measures
fwhich included reducing overhead
costs) to reduce fhe cost of its estate
where possible, and planned expenditure
was reduced on programmes such as
publicity and extramural research. But,
as most of HSE's funds ane spent on
staff, it was necessary to neduca the
number of posts - the precise number
will depend on the rate (in terms of bath
time and value) at which staff leave but

is evpected (o be between 250 and 350
by March 2008, HSE expects to achieve
this through natural furmaover, two small
voluntary early retirement schemes and
by strictly controling external recnuitment.

Financial position (balance sheet)
HSE's balance sheet shows debtors
of £30 million (which mainly consist

of income due 1o HSE for chargeable
activities and a prepayment for the fair
value of the Sheffield site, recognised
as part of H5L's PFl contract at

Buxton) and creditors of 283 milion
which mainty consists of the long-
term liakility to pay finance lease
charges on HSL's Buxton site).

Tangible fixed assets of EBS million
ara also a significant component of the
balance sheet, of which £57 million
relates to HSL's Buxton sita.

Results for the year

(operating cost statement)

The operating cost statements (for HSC
and HSE) shows a net operating cost of
£234 million,

Cash flow statement
The cash flow staterment shows a net
cash outflow from operating activities of
£228 million, compared to £218 million
in 2005/06. The main reason for this
change is the movement in creditors
from an incraasa of £7.6 million in
2005/06 to a decrease of £2.5 million in
200607, Caszh outflow of ET million from
investing activities (net of £0.3 million
procesds from disposal of fived assets)
consists mainly of expenditune on fooed
asset additions of ©7 million (£2 milion of
which relates to land and buildings).

The difference in the cash balance
at 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2007
is due to the way HSE receives its cash
from DWE

Funding
HSC is financed by Grant-in-Aid within
DWP's Request for Resources (RIR) 2.

Prior year comparatives

Comparative figures have been restated
iwhere appropriate) following the fransfer
of HSE's rail safety functions to the Office
of Rail Reguiation on 1 April 2008.

Directors' statement

S0 far as the Accounting Officers

ara awara, there is no redevant audit
information of which HSG/E's auditors
are unawaneg.

The Accounting Officers have taken
all steps that thay ought to have taken to
make themsehves aware of any relevant
audhit information and to establish that
HSC/E's auditors are aware of that
information,
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during the year

HSCs Strategy sets the direction for
HSE, LAs and others to improve
work-related health and safery in Great
Britain. The Strategy’s four themes
point us in the right direction to deliver
the vision, the mission, our objectives
and the targets.

This section lists some of the many
things that HSE has achieved during
2006/07, implemanting HSC's Business
Plan 2006/07 (waww.hse.gov.ukfaboutus/
plans/hscplans/0607/plan0E07 pdf). We
have presented these examplas under
the themes to show how the Strateqy
influences evenything we do. To provide
a rounded picture of the organisation’s
work, we have also identified some
achievements under the heading W
have been applying public sector best
practice in managing our resources
(another element of HSC's Strategy).
Each theme contains examples of
work: from our four new Dusiness
areas [see page 8). In many cases,
these achievements would sit equally
comfortably under one or more one of
the other themes.

We have been developing
closer partnerships by:

Establishing the key elements

of a productive and long-lasting

partnership with our local authority

colleagues. This work has included:

B creating and maintaining national,
regional and local govermnance
arrangemants for the parinership,
which have helped ensure
commitment and raised the profile of
health and safety in local government
and local communities;

B building and maintaining the
relationship at field level, through
regional partnership teams.
Developing plans at regional level

‘Achievemen

helps us 1o deploy [Nt resources
for maxirmum impact in delivering
national cutcomes and local and

regional pronties,

B developing an IT-based tool (an
extranet) to provide support for
LAs and enable LAs and HSE to
communicate better. We hope the
extranet will become the main vehicks
for sharing data and for captunng
and disseminating best praclice.

Continuing to play a fundamental
part in implementing the Health, work
and well-being (HWWE) strategy - a
ground-breaking partnership between
HSE, DWP and the Department of
Health, with the Scottish Executive
and the Welsh Assembly Government,
HSE contributes through Fitd's wark,
which supports HWWB's aims. HSC's
Good Health, Good Jobs conference in
Cictober 2006 kooked at the relationship
between health and work and helped
engage HWWEB's key stakeholders.
During 2006/07, HWWE also defivered:
B a successful national stakeholder
summit in May 2006
B cross-government working at official
and ministerial evel;
m two well-attended Mational
Stakeholder Council meatings; and
m the appointrnent of the first Mational
Director for Health and Work,
Professor Dame Carol Black,
who has met a variety of different
stakeholders including HSE's Chief
Executive and HSC's Chair,

Improving collaboration and targeting
of our front-line resources by working
with HM Inspectorate of Constabulary
(HMIC). The Police Service is a major
employer of staff involved in potentially
hazardous work. Both HSE and HMIC
have a shared interest in police forces'
amangements for effective managenment

S

of health and safety and in increasing
the understanding of nsk Management.

Improving the control of risks on
offshore installations. The joint
HSE/industry programme continued in
2008/07, helping to deliver improvemeants
=uch as better controls 1o help senior
managers focus on asset integrnty and
feedback to help companies benchimark
their gwn individual programmes. The
offshore industry has worked with HSE
to produce guidance and performance
incicators that will sustain improvement
in asset integnty beyond the life of the
ProgQramime.

Helping to reduce the risk from avian
and pandemie flu by co-operating
closely with other government bodies,
such as the Health Protection Agency,
Department of Health and Department
for Emnvironment, Food and Rural Affairs
(Defra). HSE has also supported civil
confingency exercises on tha national
response to managing the impact of a
fiu pandemic.

Co-ordinating data gathering activities
to reduce burdens on employers.

HSE has been working in parinership
across government (with Cabinet Office,
the Erwironment Agency and DWF)

and with key external stakeholders.

W ane working more closaly with

the Economic and Social Research
Council through a new concordat.

Using the Large Organisations
Partnership Pilot (LOPP) to help HSE
and LAs work more effectively with
large, multi-site organisations. We
have jointly agread action plans thal take
account of both HSE's priorities and

the participating organisations’ internal
objectives. LOPP is bringing an improved
focus on shared pricrities and helping to

15
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spread best practice, so improving health
and safety outcomes.

Delivering key messages to
engineering firms on the risks of
occupational asthma from using
metal working fluids. HSE worked in
partnership with Armicus and the UK
Lubricants Association to publicise this
and how the nsks should be managed.

Developing process safety
performance measures and incident
Precursor measures, working closehy
with the chemical industry and the
Chemical Industries Assoctation, HSE
launched a step-by-step guids in
Movember 2006, setting out a six-stage
approach to developing process safaty
measurement systems at site level. We
have carmied out programmes of field
inspection and worked with ten major
chamical companies to test this moded
cluring 2006/07.

Strengthening the strategic
partnership between HSE and the
Health and Safety Laboratory (HSL).
Wea have agreed principles 1o establish
an enhancad partnership between

HSE and HSL and are developing
MeCchanisms 1o improve medium to kong-
term sciance planning.

We have been helping people
to benefit from sensible health
and safety by:

Working closely with other agencies
to tackle issues relating to migrant
working (including health and safaty,
licensing, tax e1c). HSE hosted an
advisory day for employers of migrant

workers, gangmasters and esmployes
representatives to raise awarenass

of regulatory requirements. Wea also
ook part in a multi-agency inspaction
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campaign during February and March
2007, targeting migrant labour in the
vegetable and flower industries.,

Preparing to take on the role of

UK Competent Authority (CA) for

the new EU chemical legislation

- REACH (Registration, Evaluation
and Authorisation of Chemicals). In its
earhy yvears of operation, the UK REACH
CA will provide advice and support to
businasses on dealing with the new
requirerments; liaise with the European
Chemicals Agency in Helsinki and other
member state CAs to establish how
REACH will operate; and liatse betwesan
the vanous authorities that will enforce
REACH in the LK. We have set up a
helpdesk to provide information and
achice in the run up to June 2007, when
REACH comes into force.

Helping smaller businesses through
Workplace Health Connect (WHC).
This government-funded service offers
frese, confidential, practical advice on
workplace health, safety and absence
management to smaller businesses,
Since February 2006, WHC has handled
niearty 5000 enguiries and around
3000 businesses have requested an
adviser 1o visit their workplace. An
independent evaluation found that
WHC is effective at targeting small
employers across a range of sectors,
has facilitated knowledge transfer, and
employers are responding well to the
recommencanons made Dy advisers.

Preparing new pre-licensing
arrangements to facilitate the
introduction of ‘nuclear new build’,
Although it is still subject 1o consultation,
we have responded to the prospect of
assessing the satety of new civil reactors
by developing guidance on generic
designs for future nuclear power stations
that may be built,

Developing guidance on managing
human performance, to prevent

major accidents in key major hazard
industries. HSE published cnline
guidance covering a numiber of key
lopics, following research, inspection and
consultation with industry. We have also
bagun a series of targeted inspections

of our dutyholders to obtain a positive

impact, leading 1o improvements in
safety culture.

Supporting Better Regulation. In
October 2006, HSC/E published its
Simplification Plan, the first government
department or agency to do so. This
draws together a wide range of agreed
actions in support of better regulation,
More details can be found in Annex 3.

Completing a review of the domestic
gas safety regime. This has resulted

in proposals for radical change

to the gas registration scheme 1o

secure iImprovements for consumers,
simplification of the regime, and more
effective, risk-based targeting of resource.

Running a series of free, one-day
workshops to help organisations
manage sickness absence. Work-
related stress is & major cause of
occupational #l health. Cur Healthy
Workplace Salutions workshops wers
aimed at those sectors with the highast
levets of strass-related ill health, including
education, health senicas, cantral
government, local authorities, and
financial services. Sea www.hse.gow,
uksstresafindex. htm for further detail.

M Vickie Lucas, co-ordinator of the
Huaaithy workpiace solutions workshops

Raising awareness of manual handling
risks in the air transport industry. HSE
sarved two improvement nolices an an
international baggage handling compary
for failing o manage manual handling
and falis risks. As a result the company
improved its manual handling practices
significanthyt The resulting publicity has
also had a wider impact on the national
air transport industry health and safety
group, which has renewed

its commitrment to raising baggage
handling standards and tackling manual
handling risks.
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| Securing improvements in the quality
| of nuclear licensee safety submissions
by:
i

discussing issues with dutyholders
and holding a warkshop with
Magnox Electric, to gain a betler
understanding of a licensea's
perspective; 1

B agresing a good model for the

safely case production process with
British Energy and encouraging other
licensees to adopt a similar process,

Issuing a joint statement with the
Disability Rights Commission, setting
out some overarching principles

on health and safety management
and disability. This will help us o

tackle the usa of health and safety as a

false excuse for discriminating against
dizabled peaple and provide the basis for
developing guidance on this issue. The
statement can be found on our website
at www.hse.gov.uk/aboutus/diversity/
jointstatement.him.

We have been prioritising

to achieve maximum impact
on work-related injury and
ill health by:

Continuing to raise awarenass
about the biggest cause of major
injuries in the workplace. Following
on from the Watch Your Step campaign
and as part of a two-year plan, HSE
ran seminars {in association with

the NHS) focusing on slipping and
tripping hazards. We followed these
up with visits to tackle slips and

tnps in healthcare establishments,
where there is a higher than average
number of reported accidents.

Developing the evidence base

for cur work. This includes reviewing
the literature on major incident causation,
learning lessons from safety culture
interventions and analysing data from
oL main surveys (the Workplace Health
and Safety and Workplace Employment
Relations surveys). During the year,
HSE commissioned researchers

from Imperial College to investigate

the current occupational burden of

six work-related cancers. HSE wil

publish the report in summer 2007
and set the findings alongside other
inteligence and corporate knowledge
to inform HSC/E's future pricnties in
tackling workplace carcinogens,

Addressing the recommendations
from the Office of Science and
Innovation's (OS] review of HSE
science. O8] published its report

in February 2007, The findings are
masthy positive, although & number of
areas for improvernent are identified.
0Sl's recommendations cover areas
similar to those identified in HSE's
own Fundamental Review in 2006/07.
We have started implementing the
key outcomes, including improved
governance, planning and organisation
of science,

Overseeing and approving the gas
industry's programme to replace

iron gas mains. HSE developed and
published Maonitoring and reporting

of the distribution networks” mains
replacement programimes 2006-2013
under the Pipalines Safety (Amendment)
Regulations 2003. Weork has progressed
in e with the planned programime
during the year.

Revising the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 2007 (CDM
2007) and Approved Code of Practice.
We hape to achieve a step change in
the construction indusing's performance
by improving planning and management
of construction procurement. Following
extensive analysis and consultalon

with incdustry stakeholders, the

CDM 2007 reguiatory package has

been agreed by HSC, signed by the
Minister and laid before Parliament,
coming into force on B Apil 2007.

Running a successful ‘flexible
warrants’ trial, aimed ai overcoming
barriers to joint working, by allowing
HSE and LA inspectors to take action in
gach others fields of responsibility. Local
authorities across Greal Britain have
tested the scheme. We hope to offer i
nationally during 2007,

Revising HSE's Safety Assessment
Principles (SAPs) for nuclear
facilities. These guide our inspectors

N assessing dutynolders’ nuciear
safety cases. We published the revised
SAPs on HSE's website in Decamber
2006 and held a public seminar an
them in January 2007. We have now
started work 1o revise the underpnining
Technical Assessment Guides.

Investigating an incident that resulted
in an EU supplier and GB client being
prosecuted and fined £90 000 and
£130 000 respectively. A contractor's
employes was trapped in the machineny
of a new process ing being installed

by an ELl company with no British legal
entity. The supplier co-operatad Tully
with HSE's investigation, wnich revaaed
a number of falings, including lack

of a safe system of work, inadeguate
instruction and ingffectiva liaison on
health and safety batween the supglier
and chent.

Focusing a significant proportion of
inspection affort on the *cornerstone’
factors of compliance, which
contribute most to lcensess’ salety
management performance, and

the prevention of significant nuckear
avents, We have exceeded our plans
for numbers of inspections and are
using the initial results to refine and
focus additional interventions to
tackle those areas of dutyholders’
activities that are causing concarn.

Prosecuting and securing a fine of
£400 000, following an uncontrolled
release of hydrocarbons on an
offshore all and gas installation. The
release occurmed because the dutyholder
had failed to provicde a safe system

of work during removal of a pressurs
safety valve. This outcome reflects the
impartance of dutyholders ensuring

their safety management systems are
foliowed and the need to fully assess tha
risks of any significant changes to these
systems. There were no major injuries,
but such incidents have the potential to
becoms major accidents. HSE regards
them as very serous, a view clearly
shared by the court,

Scanning the horizon for
developments that could have an
impact on HSC/E's future success
in promoting and regulating Britain's
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health and safety. In 2005 we

intreduced a more structured horzon

scanning system, based on a wide
network of intemnal and external sources,
inciuding horizon centres from other
government departiments, Europe and
the rest of the wordd. Notable products
from the system include:

W 2 st of emerging pricdty topics and
cross-cutting issues for HSC/E and
the rest of the health and safety
systam;

B a comprehensive report on
population, workplace and social
trends likely to impact on the health
and safety system; and

B a groundbreaking extermnal workshop
in Movember 2006 that explored a
sat of scenarios of possible future
worlds of work in 2017,

See wew.hse. gov.uk/horzonsindex.
htrn fior more information.

We have been communicating
effectively by:

Urging people to “get a life’, focus

on risks that cause real harm and
suffering, and stop concentrating on
petty health and safety. The launch of
HSC's Sensible risk campaign, featuring
Bill Callaghan and TV presenter Ben
Fogle, received extensive national media
coverane and even attracted international
interast from the New York Times. HSE
supported the campaign by launching
principles on sensible risk management,
the revised Five steps to nsk assessment
guidance and new risk management wab
pages (see www. hsa.gov uk/riskinde.
htm).

Using mass media in our second

campaign to promote awareness of

the risks to pecple’s backs at work

and the benefits of 'staying active’.

Bafter Backs 2006 made use of:

B large biliboards at 2000 sites
naticnwide,

B commercial radio adverts reaching
15 million people;

B & London Underground poster
campaign;

B over 180 pieces of press, media and
onling coverage, and

B over 100 000 visits to the campaign
and back pain websites — with over
21 000 posters and documents
downloaded.

The campaign ran in partnership
with local authonties and involved
trade associations, professional
bodies, employee representatives and
businessas, 36% of employers and
29% of workers recalled one or more
campaign adverts when prompted.

W ¥
.Er <
T - L i

At your §o0
loak alfver your Back

™ Getting the message across ara (| tor)
Colin Douglas (Director of Communica-
tions), Jane Willis (Director, Fit3 Strategic
Pragramme) and Chief Executive
Geoffrey Podger

Raising awareness among plumbers
and heating/ventilation engineers
about risks associated with the
presence of asbestos within buildings.
Maintenance workers are gambiling with
their Ivies by working on buildings where
asbestos iz still present and risks are

not being managad, HSE worked with
vanous sector stakeholders and trade
unions to address this issue, by delivering
the Don't take the gambide campaign.

Working with local authorities to
deliver a national campaign on
work-related dermatitis, targeted at
hairdressers. Up to 70% of hairdressears
suffer some form of skin damage due
to frequent contact with water and the
chemicals in hairdressing products.
The campaign was aimed af raising
BWAreness among salon owners

to encourage thesr staff, especially
apprentcas and students, 1o protect
their hands. The campaign performed
well: 86% of salons inspected and
55% of those not visited recalled the
campasgn and 9 out of 10 felt batter
informad about dermatitis. 50%
claimed the campaign provided new
ideas on protecting their hands.

Giving high priority to better
co-ordinating our relationships with
key stakeholders and to championing
the case for sensible health and
safety through:

B a stakeholder conference hosted by
H3C;

B receptions at the Houses of
Cormmons and Lords;

B events at party conferences attended
by Commissioners;

B our new pariamentary newsletter,
issued three times a year;

B approaches to MPs with key
slatistics;

B commissioners speaking at or
attending over 50 different events
during the year; and

W health and safety awards, run in
partnership with Mational Business
Awards, Business in the Community
and Public Servant of the Year.

Engaging the support of councillors
to tackle local health and safety
issues. Wea have produced a handbook
and DVD designed to raisa the profils
of health and safety with councillors,
and aid discussion with LA enforcerneant
teams and their council colleagues. We
launched these materials in December
2006 at the annual HSELA partnership
conferance in London.

Responding to public concern.
Following convictions for health and
safety offences, HSE organised a
public hearing into the cutbreak of
legionella at a leisure centre in Barrow-
in-Furness in 2002, when saven people
died. The purpose was (o give local
residents an opporiunity 1o hear from,
and question, the Chief ExecLtive

af Barrow Borough Council and the
investigating authorities (the Crown
Prosacution Senica, Cumbria Police,
HSE and the Health Protection Agency).
The published report will help other
organigations avoid Barrow's tragedy.

Maintaining a high profile and
standing with stakeholders,
employers and employees. In a
2006 MORI survey, 82% of chief
execulives and senior directors aid
that they regarded HSE favourabily.
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We have been applying
public sector best practice
in managing our resources
throughout the year by:

Making the most of major new
investments. HRH the Duke of York
openad HSE's new Mersayside Cenltre
officially on 19 July 2006, Bringing staff
and contraciors (praviously housad in six
separate buildings) together in Redgrave
Court has;

B improved team and project working,
communications and macde senior
Managers Mmaone accessibie;

B made it easier to undertake
different and more efficiant ways of
working and so make better use of
resources; and

B given staff a superb, modem working
enmvironment.

Consclidating Freedom of Information

(FOI) arrangements. HSE handled

over 5700 enguiries [among the highest

raceived by any central government

department) curing 2006/07. We

improved staff knowledge and skills by:

B introducing an interactive e-leaming
training packaga;

W running training courses for new
operational decision makers;

B offering refresher FOI training
workshops for experienced staff; and

B producing guidance on handling the
most common FOI enguires.

at Redgrave Court included (| 1o r) Jayne
Thomas, Hilary Evans, Vinny Ainsworth,
Russ Shepherd, Steve Newman and guast
speaker Chief Inspector James Fulton from
the Association of Chief Police Officers

Improving our management of

information by introducing the Electronic

Documents and Records Management
([EDRM) system and updating HSE's
g-mail system. This enables better
axploitation of the information and

W Speakers at September's FOl conference

knowledge in e-mail and documents,
meets government requirements and
improves how staff work together. We will
completa the roll-out in 2007 /08,

Complating the Fundamental Review
to identify ways of improving HSE's
efficiency and effectiveness. Tha
resulting action plan containg aver 20
worksireams, covering thee themes:

B making best use of resources;

B improving delivery; and

W making best use of scence.

The Fundamental Review will kead 1o
significant improvements in the way HSE
USEes 15 resources o achisve mesamum
eflect in delivering its objectives.

Improving the management of

sickness absence through:

B new polices and procedures, placing
greater emphasis on rehabiltation
and earty intervention by managers;

B an interactive e-leaming training
package,

B real-time sickness reporting through
a new e-HR system, with improved
guidance; and

B refresher training workshops for all
line managers.

Other examples of our work this
yaar are ilusirated in greater detad on

pages 20-26,

19
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F1t3 Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for tomorrow

The Fit3 Straregic Programme is
focused on delivering the occupational
health and safery element of the Public
Service Agreement. During 2006/07,
Fit3 has enjoyed a number of successes,
including work to raise awareness

of slips and trips hazards and work-
related srress, plus the continuing
success of the Workplace Health
Connect scheme. One of Fied's most
notable achievements this year, working
alongside HSE's Communications
Directorare, has been the Height Awvare
CAMpaign.

" Ground Force's Tommy Walsh helped
Chief Executive Geoffrey Podger launch
the campaign at the end of May 2006

Falls are the most cormman cause of
workplace fatality and one of the main
causes of major injury. In 2005/06, 46
people died and over 3350 suffered
major injury from falls at worlk, the
miajority from ‘low’ falls below head
height. Height Aware was a nationally
co-ordinated campsaign about the risks of
working at height, running between May
and June 2006. its objectives included:

B increasing awareness among building
and plant maintenance workers'
emplovers of the risks, aven when
working at low height; and

B influencing attitudes and behaviour to
wiorking at height.

The campaign comprised:

B a nationwide media campaign (with
tha strapline “Take a moment, not a
fall') - launched by Tommy Walsh of
Ground Force:

B educational and promotional events;
and

B targeted inspechions.

The media campaign centred around
strong regional promaotional activity, but
also included nationally co-ordinated
press and radio advertiserments, targeding
common maintenance activities, HSE
revamped its Fals website complataly to
support the media campaign and made
Falington village avaitable - a specially
designed guide 10 safe working at height,
where visitors could spot hazards and
find solutions.

HSE ran 28 safety and heath
awareness days (SHADs) and 38
breakfast events, with more than 2200
attendees. Many were run in partriership
with Speedy Hire, HSS Hira, or the British
Ladder Manufacturers Association,
who were able 1o offer those attending
demonstrations of safe use
of access equipment or alternative,
safer aquipmeant,

We issued over 35 000 campaign
packs, including guidance sheets on
selecting equipment, personal protective
equipment, and competent contractors

for work at height, We also used the

campaign 1o Bunch a new guidance note

on minor roof maintenance work and a

consultative document on good practice

In maintenance work,

HSE inspectors and their local
authority partners camied out targeted
inspactions to reinforce the SHADs and
breakfast events. LAs also ran soma 30
events of their own - such as Oidham
Metropolitan Borough Council’s Ladder
Amnasty a scheme offering businesses
the chance to hand in defective ladders
and claim new sets at a discount).

The campaign evaluation showed:

B raised awareness among workers
about the risk of falls from below
head height;

B increasad awarenass amaong
largeted employers of the risks of
working at height;

B aboul one in five employers and
one in ten workers who recognised
the campaign had sought further
information about working at haight.
One in ten employers and 6% of
workers reported having taken action
as a result of the campaign and
mare than a third of both groups said
they plannid action in the future;

B SHAD events wera well received; and

B HSE's website was well used, with
250 000 hits on the campaign pages.

COrwerall, the evaluation shows that
those working at height are recognising
risk and taking precautions. Employers
are communicating the campaign
message to their workforce and ensuring
risk assessments are carmed oul.



Major.....

HSE's Major Hazards Strategic
Programme is responsible for
regulating and assuring the safery

of those industries where failure to
manage risks to health and safery
can lead to a carastrophic incident.
The industries we regulate include
nuclear, offshore oil and gas, plus
onshore major hazard industries

(eg chemical manufacture/storage.,
mining, explosives, diving at work,
dangerous pathogens and genetically
maodified organisms). The examples
below give a flavour of the important
work HSE does in these areas.

Nuclear industry

Oin 20 April 2005, British Muclear Group
Sellafield Limited (BMGSL) discovered

a leak from a pipe that supplied highly
radicactive liguor to an accountancy
tank in a cell in the Thermal Oxide

Reprocessing Plant (THORP) at Sellafield.

In total, approximately 83 000 litres of
radioactive kquor leaked onto the floor
of the contained call, although it did not
pose a danger to workers or the public,

™ British Nuclear Group Reprocessing
plant (THORP) at Sellaficld

HSE investigated the incident and
has published a report (See Wi,
hse.gov.uk/nuciear/thompreport.pdf).
Following the investigation, the company
was charged with three offences
alleging breaches of nuclear site icence

conditions. BNGSL pleaded gusity to
thesa offences and on 16 October 2006
the company was fined a total of

£500 000, with costs of £67 959
awarded to HSE. In his summing ug,
the judge emphasised that, ‘compsance
with the terms ol the licence is theretorea
of greatest imporiance” and urged
dutyholders to, *...ensure that healih and
safety issues are driven up the board
room agenda...',

THORP was shut down followeng the
incident and needed consent from HSE
pefore staring reprocessing operations
again. We granted this on 9 January
2007, following an extensive review of
safety. HSE's investigation report also
identified important lessons for tha
operator and for the nuclear industry as
a whole,

Onshore major hazards
industries

In the early hours of Sunday 11 Decamber
2005, a number of explosions cccumed
at tha Buncefield oil storage depot near
Hernel Hempstead, and a large fire
broke out at the site. Over 40 peopla
were injured and blast damage occured
ta both commercial and residential
properties in the vicinity.

HSE declared this a major incident
and H3C established the Buncefield
Maijor Incident Investigation Board (MIE).
The MIB is indepandent of HSC/E and
is chaired by Lord Mewton of Braintree.
The MIB has produced three proaness
reports from the investigation and, in
July 2008, published an interim report
inclicating the scope of the MIB's future
recommendations for:

B design/operation of sites;

B emergency preparadness/response;
B land use planning: and

m policy and regulatory framework.
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HSE moved quickly to take fonaand
the findings and recommendations from
the MIB and wider issues emenging from
the investigation to:

B work with industry, trade
associations and the emarcnmeant
agencies through the Buncefield
Standards Task Group;

B make proposals 10 enhance
standards and improve management
of major accident risks;

B propose, for consultation, rewsed
HSE land use planning policy advice
for development adjacent 10 sies
gimilar to Buncafield.

HSE's Buncafield responsea team
has issued safety alerts about ongoing
findings from the investigation and
followed therm with a programme of
site inspections to all simdar sites in the
LK. In October 2006, HSE published
initial fincings from that work, and, in
conjunction with industry, agreed a
schedule of actions and improvements
for industry to implement al around 60
sites storing gasoling in Crcumstances
sirnilar to Buncefield, The full list of
findings from the earlier review has
bean placed on the HSE weabsite with
all other Buncefield matesial (wamw,
buncefieldinvestigation.gov.uk/indes,
hkr).

As information has emerged from
the ongoing investigation into the cause
of the incident, HSE has followed this
up with appropriate actions for industry.
The complex investigation continues
and once completed it will inform any
decision on formal enforcement action
by HSE for possible breaches of heatth
and safety legislation. The main focus
of the MIB is now moving 1o develop
recommendations for potential actions 10
reduce the possibility of a similar incident
ocouming in the future,

21
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Working with local authorities

By working ro develop the partnership
with local aurthoriries{LAs), we are
secking to make best use of HSEs
and LAs" respecrive strengths o
tackle national and local priorities.
Partnership teams (HSE and LA
statt in HSE's field divisions) are
kev contriburors. In 2006/07, these
teams engaged with LAs to agree
work contributing ro HSCs strategic
priocties. Many individual LAs have
now signed ‘local’” Starements of Intent
with their regional HSE counterparts.
Of the many examples showing HSE
and LAs working in partnership during
2006407, two award-winning projects
are highlighted below. Details of other
projects in England, Scotland and Wales
can be found in the HSE/LACORS
Annual Report 2006 (www.hse.gov.
ukMaw/pdfsflacorsa. pdf).

A project invohang 74 LAS, working
In partnership with HSE and other
stakeholders, set out to reduce the
risks and improve health and safety
management in budders’ merchants

™ Lois Leonard, Partnership Liaison
Otficer for the Midlands Partnership
received an award on behalf of the 74 local
authorities in the Midlands, in recognition
of the builders' merchants project

across the Midlands - a sector idenfified
as having high rates of accidents, il
health and complainis. We organised
safety and health awareness days for
independent and small and medium-
sized bulders’ merchants, Attendescs

22

‘earned’ an 18-month break from
general proactive inspection 1o enable
devesopment of their action plans and
make improvermants basad on the
information from the seminars.
Companies not attending the
event, and those who did attend but
whose activities caused concern,
remained in the inspection programma.
Larger builders’ merchants receead
safely management audits by cross-
Doundary LA teams. The scale of this
initiative was impressive and has had a
nationwicle impact, with proposals to set
benchmarks for the industry,

The Yorkshire and Morth East
Fartnership established the Safer
Working Community campaign, involving
councils in Biyth Valley, Sunderland, and
East Riding of Yorkshire, This initiative
targeted HSE's pricrities as well as
specific local ssues. The overall aim of
the initiative was to build sustainabée
improvernents in health and safaty: a
key means of achieving this was to build
relationships with and between key
stakeholders. The campaign addressed
planning, stakeholder angagemeant,

a week of visits, inspactions, anc
further awarenass events, building in
sustainability.
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Enforcement

HSE and local authority inspectors
are at the front line, working with
dutvholders to ensure thar risks

to people’s health and safery from
work activities are controlled
properly. This means reducing risks
and protecting people at work by:
providing advice and guidance

on how to comply with the law,
inspecting workplaces, investiganng
accidents and 4.:|::|:|11|1|.'|iul::1 and raking
enforcement action where necessary,
HSEs recent work with the drilling
industry shows how our inspectors
waork and the benehts thar result,

i April 2006, HSE succassiully
prosecuted a driling company
following a near-fatal accident when
an emploves became entanglad in
an unguarded lormy-mounted drilling
rig. The company received a fine
of £20 000 with £30 000 costs.

During the investigation, we
worked closely with the British Drlling
Association when it becama apparent
that guarding standards within tha
industry were in nesed of improvernent in
mary cases. The outcomea of the case

was highly publicized and featured in
marny trade journals

On the back of this, HSE decided
that it would be a good time 1o launch
a large-scale intervention, The
prosacuting mepactor, with the
assistance of coleagues, produced
specific gudance 1or 1he driling Industry
on guarding requirements under the
Provigion and Usa of Work Equipment
Requlations 1998, This was sent via
mgilshot 1o members of other trade
associations requesting that they review
their risk assessments on this issue and
raspond accordingly.

The drilling industry’s biannual
trade show took place shortly aiter
the mailshot was issued, HSE secured
exhibiion spaca at the event at shon
notice and was asked (o present at a
seminar on guarding at the show. For
twio days, HSE personngl with specialisi
knowledge staffed the stand, which was
particularty busy. Despite it being the
last seminar of the day, over 150 people
attended, with standing room only. The
fact that several companies exhibiting
had been asked (o stop their practica
demonstrations due fo lack of guards
caused a definite shir

We assassed responses to the
maikshot and, whare appropnate,
contacted companies o advisa thal
their responses were not accaptabla
The data has been passed to HSE's
construction sector stalf, who will targel
higher risk companies during 2007/

Sp far, we have been informed that
56 drilling rigs have been fitted with
guards and eight have been taken oul
of usa, either voluntarily or following
Prohibition Motices. HSE is currently
working on raising standards of imponed
rigs and interest in the guidance has
been shown in Eurcpe

e
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Policy

The central objective of the Policy
Programme is to maintain HSEs
position as an exemplar of modern
regulation, while supporting
implementation of HSC's Strategy and
PSA delivery. The Policy Programme:

B promotes etfective regulation in
HSE, ensuring the organisation
always regulates for results;

B leads on key areas of health and
safety policy, including enforcement,
public safery, the energy secror
{including the nuclear industry)
and the manufacture and use of
chemicals; and

® engages with business and worker
representatives, with government in
the UK and internationally.

An important example of poficy work
this year was HSE's involvernent in the
Energy Review.

The Department of Trade and
Industry (DT launched its Energy
Review in January 2006, to assess
progress lowards the goals sat out in
the: government's 2003 White Paper Our
anergy future = crealing a low carbon
economy: In making policy decisions in
this area, the government needed to take
account of the health and safety risks of
each option, saveral of which would uze
new technology.

The then Energy Minister, Malcalm
Wicks, asked HSE to produce an
independent expart report on the
health and safety implications of

24

vanous energy developments and the

steps taken by HEE to ensure that

the risks in those areas are managed

sansibly by industry. In the event of

a newy generation of nuckear power

stations being ordered, the Minister

sought HSE's views on the potential
rode of pre-licensing assessments

for candidate reactor designs.

This was an unexpected piece of
woork with a short deadline and required
a concerted responsa from staff across
HSE. The report is based on:

B HSE's knowledge and expertise:

B the informed views of relevant
stakeholders gained through a public
consultation (including a workshop)
on HSE's regulatory strategy for
licensing nuclear installations; and

B a separate workshop on non-nuclear
matters.

H3E's repost covers a wide range
of energy developments such as gas
storage, carbon caplure and storage,
nuckear enargy, renswable energy and
cleaner coal. It describes the health and
safety risks and explains the regulatory
strategy for controlling those risks. The
report concludes that our health and
safety system is mature, wall astablizhad
and able 1o deal with new energy-related
risks and hazards,

HSE's report The health and safety
risks and regulatory strategy related to
aneryy devalopments was published on
28 June 2006 (meeting the deadline)
and was well received by government,
See www.hse.govuk/consult/condocs)
energyreview/enargyreport. pf,
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S C]. ence 5 engineering and technology

The HSC Science Strategy 2005-2008
{wwow hse. gov.ukiresearchiconrent/
strategy(508, pdf) sets out how we
will apply high-quality science to
support delivery of our vision, mission
and PSA and to look ahead, idenrify
and meer furure challenges. We have
identified improving understanding of
organisational/human behaviour and
how to influence this as a key research
area. One example of this is our work
on the Trojan Horse Health and Safety
Messaging Project.

Trojan Horse is an example of
successful partnarship working
betweaen HSE and industry to improve
safety on construction sites. The Steel
Construction Institute led the project,
with Loughborouwgh University and a
rumber of trade associations working
ag pariners under the Co-Construct
urmbrella. Several construction
companies provided significant technical
and logistical support.

Tirme can reduce the impact of the
safety information routinely displayed al
construction sites. This project amed
to remind site operatives of key safety
messages leg to lift loads comectiy)
just before they embark on that activity.
The messages were carefully designed
in collaboration with refevant trade
azsociations, and displayed on building
materials and tools so that they would be
visible at point of use. These safety signs
rely mainky on pictures, with little or no
text — 50 are suilable for a growing non-

English-speaking workforce.

The first phase of the study showed
that the Trojan Horse messaging
tachnicpes:

B generated minimal interference with
construction site works;

B clicited positive responsas from
operatives working on site and using
materials on which the Trojan Horse
safety messages were displayed; and

m resulted in high levels of awareness
and recall of content of the salety
recommendations, despite sigrincant
*background noisa” from other Site
safely notces,

The second phase of the study,
which aimed 1o assess the long-term
and behavioural impact of the safety
messages, showed that:

N awareness of the messages
increased after repeated expOSLUNE;

B chservations of behaviour aftes
implemantation of the Trojan Horse
message suggested a positne
impact on workers” behaviowr; and

# the social ervironmant played a
eantral role in ghaping the bahaviour
obsarved in this study.

The posttive outcomes of the study
have led HSE to recommend the use
of Trojan Horse messaging as part of
companies’ overall health and safaty
strategies. These outcomeas were
presanted at a high-profile seminar
in September 2006, attended by key
health and safety personnel frorm major
contractors, construction clients and
trade associations.

s 200607
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M an aging our business

The Resources and Planning This enabiled the team to produce

Direcrorate (RPD) provides the business  and implement a realistic plan, along with

infrastructure, corporate services and a chear requirernent for an (T system to

governance that enable HSE to deliver support the transformation.

its objectives and rargets. An important HRST comprisad four key elements:

example of its work this year was B recruiting HR professionals to

the transformation of HSE's human work within business areas: this

resource {HR) service. brought an external perspective
HSE's Board challenged its senior to HR delivery and strengthened

HR managers to transform and improve SUppon 1o business araas;

the way they delivar their senices across B focusing on streamlining HR

HSE and HSL. During 2006/07, the policies and procedures: an

HR Service Transformation Programme early success was the revised

(HRST) achieved its objectives on time discipline and grievance policy,

and to budget, producing eary business which gives managers much more

benefits, for example by reducing HR say in the process:

staff costs, B establishing a Service Centre

concentrating on quality suppaort,
advice and guidance. The new
Saervice Centre represents a big
change for HR and for the rest of the
organisalion, Everyone is working
hard to ensre we continue to
IMprove;

B introducing a computerised ‘e-HR'
system that enables managers and
staff to be responsible for aspects

N David Longworth (HR Service Centre), of HR through ‘self service' and
Trish Mercar, Alison McKenzie-Folan and .
Maria Finch. HRST transforming the way et penemen

&

HSE delivers HR information. HSE chose an industry
standard “off-the-shell' HR package

Key to the succass of HEST was for this - the brief was not to change

early wark: it unlass there was a real business

B with the Chartered Institute of risk. The feam was able to stick to
Personnel and Development; these principles, supported by the

B with other organizations (from willngness of the HSE user groups
the private and public sectors) o challenge and change how we
that had gone through a similar do things. This enabled the team to
fransformation; deliver bath the main system and

B wilh H5E colleagues, via various self-sarvice elements on time.
business user groups and
workshops; and We will continue to fransfonm how

B on lessons leamed from other HSE we defiver HR services and realise the
programmes. benefits from these new ways of working.

Thena is still work to do, but progress so
far has been impressive.
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Remuneration...

(audited)

Management

Appointment of the Commission and
members of the Executive
The Chairman was appointed for a
period of five years in October 1999,
His appointment was renewed for a
further three years in 2004, Commission
members are appointed for a fixed term
of three vears, which may ba renawed.
Tha Chairman is par-time, working
four days a week, If the Chairman or
a memkber leaves the Commission
other than an the expiry of their
term of office, and it appears to the
Sacretary of State that thare are special
circumstanceas that justify the payment
of compensation, a payment can be
made as detemnined by the Secretary
of State, with Treasury approval.

The Chief Executive is appointed
for a ficed term of up to five years.
All rmembers of the Executive are

Table 5 Commissonaers' serice conitracts

established members of the Senior Civil
Service and subject to standard Cabinat
Office terms and conditions. Mone of
the members of the Executive receive
any predetermined compensation on
termination of office.

The Secratary of State appoints the
Chairman and Commigsionars, Membears
af tha Executive are civil servants and
appointrnents are made in accordance
with the Chil Sarvice Commissioner's
Racruitment code.

Further work on the Chil Sarvice
Commissioners can be found at www,
civilsanicacommissioners. gov.uk.

Commission

i The Secretary of State determines
remuneration for Commissionears,

il Performance management and
revvard for Commissioners 15
managed in line with prnciples sat
out for Civil Servants by Cabinet

i}

)

Vi

i)

Office and agreed by the Secrefary of
State.

The proporon of remuneration
subject o performance conditions

i5 broadly in Ene with the
recommandation by the Senior
Salaries Review Body and agreed by
the Secretary of State,

Terms and conditions are set out in
the Health and Safety at Work etc.
Act 1974, A person may at any tims
resign their office as a member or as
a chaimnan or deputy chairman by
agiving the Secratary of Stale a nolice
in writing sigred by that person and
stating that he resigns that office.
Details of the senvice contract for
each Commissionar who has served
during the year are as shown in
Table 5.

There were no non-cash elements
of the remuneration package during
the year.

Mame Date of contract Unexpired term Motice period
Bill Callaghan 1 October 19949 & months MAA

Sandy Blair CEBE 1 April 2006 2 years NA

Margaret Burns CBE 1 April 2004 Contract expined S,

Daniel Carrigan 1 October 2004 & months M,

Judith Donovan CBE 1 October 2006 1 yaar MR

Prof Sayeed Khan 1 April 2005 1 year M/A £
John Longworth 1 April 2005 1 year N/A

Hugh Robertson 1 April 2004 Contract expired” A,

Elizabeth Snape MBE 1 October 2006 2 years 6 months PAA

John Spanswick CBE 1 May 2006 2 years 1 manth A

* Although Hugh Robertson's curment contract expired on 31 March 2007,

a furiher three year contract commenced on 1 Apdl 2007

27



Health and Satety Comression Anmual Repor and the Haealth and Satety Commission/Executive Accounis 200607

Executive

) The remuneration of senior managers is in line with the recommendations for members of the Senior Civil Service by Cabinet
Office and the Senior Salaries Review Body. A remuneration committee exists to agree the remuneration of the Executive. This
committea consists of the Permanant Secratary, the Chairman of HSC and an independant member,

i) Performance management and reward is managed in HSE in line with the principles set cut by Cabinet Office.

i} The proportion of remuneration subject to performance conditions is in line with the recommendation by the Sanior Salaries
Feview Body. [

iv] The slandard terms and conditions defined by Cabinet Office for members of the Sanior Chal Senvice apply in H3E.

vl Details of the service contract for each senior manager who has served during the year are shown in Table 6.

vi] Thera wera no non-cash alements of the remuneration package during the year. 1

Table 6 Senior managers’ senice contracts g

Marme Date of contract Unexpired term Motice period ]
Geoffrey Podger CB 28 Movember 2005 3 years B months 13 wesks l
Justin McCracken 1 April 2002 Open-ended 13 weeks !
Jonathan Rees 13 September 2004 Open-endad 13 weeks i
The standard terms and conditions defined by Cabinet Offics for members of the Senior Civil Service apply in HSE to the provision of A

compensation for eary ratirement

g

Remuneration of Commissioners and members of the Executive

Commissioners
The following held office during the year with responsibilities as shown:

Bill Callaghan Chairman John Longworth Commissioner

Sandy Blair CBE Commissioner Hugh Robertson Commissioner

Margaret Burns CBE ~ Commissioner Elizabeth Snape MBE ~ Commissioner

Daniel Carrigan Commissioner John Spanswick CBE  Cormmissionar from 1 May 2006
Judith Donovan CBE Commissiones Joyce Edmond-Smith  Commissioner to 31 March 2006
Prof Sayeed Khan Commissioner Judith Hackitt Commissioner to 28 February 2006*

* Although Joyee Edmond-Smith and Judih Hackitt did not hold office during the year, they ane included here for comparative puposes

Robin Dahlberg has been appointed to the Commission since 31 March 2007.

Executive i
The composition of the Executive during the year was as follows:

Timothy Walker CB Director General to 30 Saptember 2005
Chief Executive from 28 November 2005
Deputy Chief Executive (Operations)
Deputy Chief Executive (Policy)

* Although Timothy Walker did not hold office during the year, Mt i inCluded here for comparative purposes.
Mormenclature was amended from Director General to Chied Executive with effect from 1 Oclober 2005

Geoffrey Podger CB
Justin McCracken

Jonathan Rees
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Company directorships

Geaoffrey Podger is a member of the Council/Board of the Institute of Employmeant Studies.
Justin McGracken is a trustee of tha British Safaty Council,

Salary and pension entitlements

The following sactions provide details of the remuneration and pension interests of the Commissionars and Executive.
Table 7 Remuneration = Commissioners

2006/07 2005/06
Benefits in Kind Benefits in kind
Salary (to nearest £100) Salary (o nearest £100)
Commissioners £'000 £'000 £'000
Bill Callaghan 115-120 - 115-120
Sandy Blair CBE 15-20 1 700
Margaret Burns CBE 15-20 5 300 15-20 51000
Daniel Carrigan 15-20 5 500 15-20 4200
Judith Donovan CBE 15-20 6 300 15-20 3 600
Prof Sayeed Khan 15-20 6 800 15-20 5100
John Longwaorth 15-20 1 400 16-20 1400
Hugh Robertson 15-20 - 15-20
Elizabeth Snape MBE 15-20 - 15-20
John Spanswick CBE - - -
Joyce Edmond-Smith - - 15-20 700
Judith Hackitt - - 10-15
Table 8 Famuneration — Exsculive
2006/07 200506
Benefits in kind Benefits in kind
Salary (to nearest £100) Salary (tor nearest £100)
Executive £'000 £'000 £'000
Timothy Walker CB - - 80-85
Geoffrey Podger CB 155-160 = 50-55
Justin McCracken 135-140 - 135-140°
Jonathan Rees 120-125 - 105-110

-+ Justin McCracken was Acting Chief Executive from 1 September to 27 Movembar 2005

Salary .
‘Salary' includes gross salary, performance pay or bonuses, overtime, reserved rights to London weighting or London
allowances, recruitment and retention allowances, private office allowances and any other allowances to the extent that they

are subject to UK taxation.
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Benefits in kind

The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by the Inland Revenue as a
taxable emolument. These benefits for Commission members include travel and subsistence payments associated with home to
office travel, as appropriate. Any ensuing tax Eability is met by HSC.

Pension benefits
Table 8 Fension banefits - Commessionars

Accrued pension and
lump sum at age 60

Commissioners £'000

Bill Callaghan 37.5-40 pension
and 112.5-115
lurmp sum

Table 10 Pension benefils — Executive
Accrued pension and
lump sum at age 60
Executive £000
Timothy Walker CB =
Geoffrey Podger CB* 55-60 pension
and 170-175
lurmp swm
Justin McCracken 10-15 pension and
40-45
lump sum
Jonathan Rees 50-55 pension

* These figures take account of Mr Podger's pension nights fram a previous employmment

Real increase in
pension and related
lump sum at age 60

£'000
0-2.5 pension

and 2.5-5
lumg sum

Real increase in
pension and related
lump sum at age 60

£'000

7.5-10 pension
and 25-27.5
g sum

0-2.5 pension and
7.5-10
lump sum

2.5-5 pension

CETV at
31/03/07

£°000
6a7

CETV at
31/03/07

£'000

1806

203

837

CETVat Real increase
31/03/06 in CETV
£'000 £'000
540 44
CETV at Real increase
31/03/06 in CETV
£'000 £°000
1415 -
8B5 170

176 21

780 a3

As the cument Chaimman is not a member of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS), a pension provision has been
set up, in line with FRS17, on a 'by analogy to the PCSPS’ basis to account for the value of an eguivalent fund for the Chalrman.
An actuarial valuation of the fund was carried out as at 31 March 2007, The valuation has been undertaken using the: following

AsSuMmphions:

B an investment retum in excess of price increases of 1.8% pa;
B aninvestment retun in excess of general salary increases of 1.8% (as Mr Callaghan's pensionable pay is capped at 31 March

2007 and the eamings cap increases approximately in line with price INCreases);
B the gross rate of retum is assumed to be 4.6% pa, although this assumption has a minor impact on the calculation of the

iabity;

B in nominal terms, these assumptions are then equivalent to an allowance for increases in pensionable salaries of 2.75% pa
and an allowance for price inflation of 2.75% pa; and
B Mr Callaghan is not reappointed at the end of his term, and his pension will be presarved until age 60 when it will come into

payment.

Mo Commission members, other than the Chairman, have pensions. Furthar details can be found in Note 1(c) to

HSC's accounts.




Civil Service Pensions (CSP)

Pension benefits are provided through
the CSP arrangements. Fram 1 October
002, civil servants may be in ona
threa statutory based “final salary”
daﬁrwdmmﬁlschmmgclassic.
E;H'erﬂum.wclaasic Plus). The
- Schemes are unfunded with the cost
* of benefits met by mories voted by
- Parfiament each year. Pensions payable
- Plus are increasad annually in line with
- changes in the Retail Price Index. New
 entrants after 1 October 2002 may
. choose between membership of the
~ Premium scheme or joining a good
. quality ‘money purchase’ stakehoider
~ arrangement with a significant employer
~ confribution (Partnership Pension
account).
Employee contributions ang set at
the rate of 1.5% of pensionable earnings
~ for Classic and 3.5% for Premium and
Classic Plus. Benefits in Classic accrue
al the rate of 1/80" of pensionable salary
~ for each year of service. In addition, a
lumnp sum equivalent to three years’
; pension is payable on retirement. For
Premium, benefits accrue at the rata
of 1/607 of final pensionable eamings
for each year of service. Unlike Classic,
there is no automatic lump sum (But
members may give up (commute) some
of their pension to provide a lump sum).
Classic Plus is essentially a variation of
Premium, but with benefits in respect of
senvice before 1 October 2002 calculated
broadty as per Classic.
The Partnership Pension account is
a stakeholder pension arrangement. The
employer makes a basic contribution
of between 3% and 12.5% (depending
on the age of the member) into a
stakeholder pension product chosen
by the employee. The employee does
not have to contribiule but where thay
da make contributions, the employer
will match these up 1o a Emit of 3%
of pensionable pay (in addition to
the employer's basic contribution).
Employers also contribute a further 0.8%
of pensionable salary to cover the cost
of centrally-provided risk benefit cover
(cleath in service and ill health retirement).
The accrued pension quoted is the
pension the member is entitled to receve
when they reach 60, or immediately on

ceasing (o be an active member of the
schamae if they already reached 60
Further datails about the CSP
arrangements can be found at the
website: www.chvilserniCe-Densions. gov.uk

The Cash Equivalent Transfer
Value (CETV)
A Cash Equivalent Transfar Valus (CETV)
is the actuarially assessed capitatised
value of the pension scheme benefits
accrued by a member at a particular
point in time, The benefits valued are
the members' accrueed benefits and
any contingent Spousa’s pension
payabde from the scheme. A CETV is a
payment made by a pension scheme
OF arrangemeant 10 Secure pension
benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves
a scheme and chooses to transfer the
pension banefits accruad in their former
scheme, The pension figures shown
relate to the benefits that the individual
haz accrued as a consequence of
their total membership of the pension
schema, not just thesr senice in a senior
capacity 1o which disclosure applies. The
CETV figures, and from 2003/04, the
other pension datails, include the vaug
of any pension benefit in another scheme
or arrangament which the individual has
tranzfemed to the CSF amangements
and for which the Cabinet Offica’s Civil
Superannuation Viote has received
a transfer payment commensurate
to the adcitional pension liabilties
being assumed. They also include any
adiditional pension benefit accrued to the
rmember as a result of thelr purchasing
additional years of pension senvice in
the scheme at their own cost. CETVS
ara calculated within the guidefines and
framework prescribed by the Institute
and Faculty of Actuaries.

Please note that the factors used
to calculate the CETW were revised on
1 April 2006 on the advice of the Scheme
Actuary. The CETV figure for March 2006
has been restated using the new faclors
so that it is calculated on the same basis
as the CETV figures for 31 March 2007.

The real increase in the value

of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV
affectively funded by the employer. It
{akes account of the increase in accrued
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pension due to inflation, contributions
paid by the emplovee (including the valua
of amy banefits transfemad from another
pension scheme or amrangement) and
u=es common market valuation factors
for the start and end of the period.

AT
Bl (
Eill Callaghan Chairman
Health and Safety Commission

Accountng Officer
13 June 2007
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Geoffrey Podger CB Chief Execulive
Healih and Safety Executive
Accounting Officer
14 June 2007
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Annex 1 : HSE’s structure

Geoffrey Podger'
Chiaf Executive
OPERATIONS POLICY
Justin McCracken® Jonathan Reas®
Deputy Chief Executive Deputy Chiaf Executive

Patrick McDonald®
Chief Scientific Advizer/
Sandra Caldwell® Peter Buckley Director
Director Head Corporate Science and
Field Operations ! Strategy Anahdical Services
Mike Weightman® Giles Denham® Vivienne Dews"
Director/Chief Inspector Director W Director
Muclear Safety Paolicy ¥ Resources and Planning
Jane Willis* Eddie Morland®
Kevin Myers® Director | Chisf Executive
Director Fit3 Strategic p Health and Safaty
Hazardous Installations Frogramme Laboratory
Heather Bolton
Head Colin Douglas®
Operational Palicy Director
and Support Communications
Phil Scott
| Director Alex Brett-Holt*
Local Authaority Legal Adviser
! Parinership | Legal Advice - HSC/E

" Member of HSE Board
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Ann eX. 2 : Health and safety in HSE

Health and safety in HSE is driven by
an annual corporate plan - determined
by a three-year framework for health
and safery, which the HSE Board agreed
in 2005. The framework sets out where
we want to be by 2009 in terms of
health and safety performance. The
HSE Board monitors progress regularly
against the plan and the framework.

During 200607, HSE continued
to address the main hazard areas
that staff encounter - slips and trips,
musculoskeletal disorders, display screan
equipment, stress-related il health, road
risk and lone working.

HSE's trade unions are closely
invohved in all health and safety matters.
An example of this was the development
of new procedures for dealing with
those occasions that carmy the risk of
violence. A joint management/trade
unicon task group worked to canvass
staff views and incorporate them into
the new policy. The review included
looking at abuse over the telephone, and
at the training provided to staff 1o help
them assess and deal with potentially
difficult situations. Other areas where
new guidance was produced included
the occupational health policy and the
use of personal protective equipment.

During the year, we re-tendered for
HSE's occupational health provision.
Our aim was to agree a contract that
reflected best practice in cccupational
health and made best use of modern
technology. We chose Capita Health
Solutions Limited and kook forward to
a productive working relationship with
thaemn, beginning in 2007/08.

HSE participated in the Better Backs
2006 campaign (page 18). We wanted
to ensure that those staff promoting
the campaign to the public would alsc
benefit from it themsalves. With trade

umion support, staffl around the country
attended workshops and seminars on
back care. Our occupational health
provider helped us produce internal
publicity iterature to support the
CEMPAIN.

The HSE Board agreed a stress
action plan during the year. This aross
from a risk assessment process that
took place in 2005. The plan commits
HSE to improve its managament
training, produce better guidance on
managing change, and identify and deal
with unacceptable behaviour. We also
incorporated the stress rizk assessment
survey, previously used in 2005, into tha
2007 staff survey and used the resulls 10
update HSE's stress action plan.

Accident and ill-health
statistics

Thig year we have seen encouraging
daclines in both cases of il health and
incidents resulting in injury. We have
battered our targets for reductions in
slip and trip injuries and display screen
equipment (DSE) related il health, Thi
numbers of incidents reportable under
BIDDOR remained at a low level, HSE'S
RIDDOR rates are markedly better than
those of comparable organisations.






In developing its focus as a modern
regularor, HSC/E 1s committed to
ensuring its approach to regularion is

. more effective and efficient, for both

those regulated and the regulators.
Better regulation, which is easier to
understand and apply, helps secure
stronger commitment to compliance
from business and so improves health
and safery results.

Simplification Plan

In October 2006, HSC/E published its

Simplification Plan. The plan is rooted in

HSC's Strategy. The key elerments within

the plan, aiming to maintain or improve

health and safety cutcomes whils

reducing costs to dutyholders, include:

B sensible risk managemant:
developing a culture of health
and safety at work by simplifying
our guidance and encouraging
effective risk management through
proportionate risk assagsmant;

m Gas Safety (installation and Use)
Requiations 1998: a review of
the gas safety regulatory regime,
inclucing the landlords' gas safety
chieck, in line with risk-basad
principles;

B forms projects: reducing the amount
and burden of HSE forms;

B Lifting Operations and Lifting
Equipment Regulations 1993
and Provision and Use of Work
Equipment Regulations 1998:
producing new guidance to clarify
inspection requirements and
research to support a review of the
Regulations:

B Hgalth and Safety Information
for Employess Regulations:
revienving the effectiveness of the
HSE-approved health and safety
poster (which dutyholders are

obliged to buy and display) and
considering alternative means
of delrvering this infarmmation;

B Construction regulations:
sirmplifying the process for checking
dutyholders' competence and
consolidating four pieces of
legeslation into one;

B Control of Substances Hazardous
to Health Regulations 2002
rationakising guidance o make i
more accessible and focus on key
‘hiowd 1" information for employers,

Risk-based regulation

HSG/E follows the principles of good
requlation: proportionality, accountability,
consistency, transparency and
targeting, which are integral to &ll polcy
development throughout HSE. The
principles underpin cur Enfiorcement
Policy Statement and regulatory

impact assessments, ansunng that

any intervention activity is based on a
balanced approach to risk.

Measures already delivered

In the tast 12 months, HSE has:

m continued to reinforca senior
leadership on regulatory chalienge
by its formal panel 1o test regulalory
proposals, with a particular eye
io the scope for non-regulatony
alternatives, impact on small and
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs)
and - where regulation is justified
- best practice for implementation;

@ enhanced the Small Business Trade
Association Forum helping it to make
significant input to sharpen HSE's
approach to dealing with SMEs;

W published a simple two-page guicke
for businesses (especially SMEs) on
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Annex 3 : Better Regulation

why they might be visited by HSE
and what they can expect;

B introducad the new Gontrod of
Asbestos at Work Regulations
2006, These repealed three sets
of regulations and removed the
requirement for businesses working
with low-risk asbestos-containing
materials to hold a cence;

B launched a debate on sensible
risk management leading 1o the
development of the Principles of
Sensible Rizk Management formally
launched in Augus! with significant
investment resulting in widespread
media covarage,

B compleled a zero-based forms
rexsew, which lead us to remove
some 54% of our forms and look: at
ways 1o make all refmaining fommns
avallable electronically;

m invested considerably in embedding
partnership working with local
authorities, showing sigriicant
results In govemance arrangaments
and local point workandg;

B developed a new approach
to dealing with large multi-site
organisations;

W revised our inspection regime in co-
pperation with ather reguiators, 1o
reduce the burdens of duplicated
and un-coordinated inspection on
ihe public senices;

B finalisac detailed implernentation
plans for the mergers recommended
in the Hampton report; and

B developed propasals to delver
enforcement activity that is better
targeted and more efficient.

Regulatory impact
assessment (RIA)

A cost-benefit analysis approach
has been embedded in HSC/E policy
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development since the early 19805 and
forms a key part of the government's
regulatory impact assessment (RIA)
process, During 2006/07, HSE has

usad the process to shape its policies,
including exploring allernatives to
legislation and demonstrating the benefits
of simplification and consalidation.

HSE has continued to acdvocate
effective impact assessments al
Eurcpean level, ensuring that Batter
Regulation considerations ara fad in
during the proposal, negotiation and
implementation stages. Builkding upon
this, HSE introduced a new sirengthened
mechanism fo challenge and support
policy teams dealing with EC proposals.

HSE has continued to achieve 100%
compliance with the BLA process. A RLA
was produced for all policy proposals
that had an impact on businezs, charities
or voluntary bodies, in compliance with
Cabinet Office guidance.

Other Better Regulation
initiatives

HSE has set up a Better Regulation
Oversight Group to take a sirateqic
overview of the activity in HSE that
broadly falls under the heading of our
work to be a modern regulator. The
direct interests of this group include risk,
targets, transparency and joining up with
other regulators.

Common commencement dates

H3E implemented common
commencement datas at the start

of 2005. This means that regulatory
changes arising within the UK will be
implemented on only 6 Aprl or 1 Oclober
each year. HSE has now extended this
to include regulations orginating from
Europe where possible.

Consultation best practice

During the 2006 calendar year, HSC/E
openad seven formal consultations on
policy proposals, all of which lasted

12 weaeks or more. This included
consultation on strategies to promote
worker involvenent in health and safaty
risk management. We published the
consultation onling and in hard copy. It
remained open for over 19 weeks, and
responses wera imvited in a variety of
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formats. In addition, HSE published a
summarny document outlining the issues
involved, and organised a seres of
genarated lively debate.

New intarnal consultation guidance
has been issued which focuses on the
naed to consult early and in innovative
ways to ensure that we reach a wide
range of stakeholders,
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Statement

of the Commission’s, the Executive’s, the Chairman’s
and the Chief Executive’s responsibilities

Under pamgmpm 14(1) and 20(1} of Schedule 2 of the Health and !'L.lfl_'l}' at Work erc. Act 1974 the
Health and Safety Commission and the Health and Safety Executive are required to prepare a statement
of accounts for each financial year in the form and on the basis determined by the Secrerary of State,
with the consent of the Treasury. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true
and Fair view of the Commission’s and the Execurive’s state of affairs ar the vear-end and of their net
operating cost, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing their accounts, the Commission and Executive are required to:

B ochsenva the Accounts Directions issued by the Secratary of State, including the relevant accounting
and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

B make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

| state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, and disclosa and explain any
material departures in the financial staterments; and

B prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis, unless i is mapproprate to presume that
the Commission and the Executive wall continue in oparation

The Accounting Officer for the Department for Work and Pensions has designated the Chairman of the
Health and Safety Commission and the Chief Executive of the Health and Safety Executive as Accounting
Offficers for the Commission and Executive respectively. Their relevant responsibilities as Accounting
Officers, ncluding their responsibilities for the propriaty and regularity of the public finances for which they
are answerable and for the keeping of proper records are set Oul in the Mon-Departmental Public Bodies”
Accounting Officer Memaorandum, issued by the Treasury and published in Government Accounting.



Health and Safety Commission Annual Repon and the Health and Saflety Commission/Exacutive Acoounts 200607

Stat em ent on Internal Control

40

1 Scope of responsibility

A3 Accounting Officers (for the Health and Safety Commission, the Chair, and for the Health and Safety Executive,
the Chief Executive), we have responsibiity for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports

the achievemant of the Health and Safaty Commission’s (HSC's) and the Health and Safsty Executive's (HSE's)
policies, aims and objectives, agreed with the Depariment’s Ministers. We are also responsible for safeguarding
the public funds and assets for which we are personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to us in Government Azcounting.

HSC and HSE are Non-Departmental Public Bodies with Crown status established under the Health and
Safety at Work etc. Act 1974. The sponsoring department is the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), DWPE
ministers have responsibility for health and safety issues in government. HSC/E also report to other Ministers on
different aspects of health and safety. The Health and Safety Laboratory (HSL) was established as an in-house
agency of HSE on 1 April 1995 and operates on ‘Mext Steps Agency” principies. HSL provides health and safety
science and research senices. It has its own Accounting Officer and arrangements to manage risk.

H3C/E's vigion is to gain recognition of health and safety as a cormerstone of a civilised society. and with that,
to achieve a record of workplace health and safety that leads the word, HSC sats the straleqy for securing health
and safety in relation to work activities with input and support from HSE,

2 The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonabie level rather than to eliminate all risk

of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, provide only reasonable, and not absalute,
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process dezigned o identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of HSC/E's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiantly, effectively and
economically. It has been in place and progressively developed in HSC/E over the year ended 31 March 2007 and
up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, and accords with Treasury guidance.

3 Capacity to handle risk

HSC/E's mission is to ensure that risks to health and safety from work activity are property controlied. Effective
managament of risk (including reducing risk to members of the public) so far as is reasonably practicable is a cona
part of that mission, HSC consults formally on all regulatory changes.

Mew internal consultation guidance has been issued which focuses on the need to consult early and in
innovative ways to ensure that a wide range of stakeholders is reached. For examiple, duning 2006, the
Worker Involvernent Consultation arranged a number of regional workshops to explain the proposals and obtain
direct feedback.

HSC's Annual Business Plan for 2006/07 set out how HSG/E intended to take forward HSC's Strategy,
deliver the work-related health and safety Public Senvice Agreement (PSA) targets and meet its statutory
obligations. The 2007/08 plan continues thesa objectives and positions HSE to manage the impending Spencing
Review settiement for the next three years and sets out forthcoming challenges. It focuses on what HSE wil
deliver and how it will manage performance under HSE's four key business arsas (Outcomes, Enabling Justice,
Public Accountability and Support to Government) as weall as how it will support itself corporately,

Arrangements for managing business risk are in place and continue to be developed by HSE's directorates,
divisions, key programmes and a range of projects. An internal audit review of HSE's business risk managemant
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arrangements offered substantial assurance to the Accounting Officers that the business risk manageament
system provides an adequate basis for effective control and is property operated in practice,

HEE's Rigk Management Improvement Plan for 2008/07 was designed to further emibed risk
management processes across the organisation by sharing best practice, reviewing whether HSE's
enposure 1o risk is right and raising the risk profile through a reconstituted Audit Committee. A shor
practical guide on business risk is avalable to all HSE staff, with a more comprehensive version (updated
aq:_:i riow Including good practice exampies) to be released soon. HSE's central strategic planning team
provides ad hoc support and advice on business risk issues. A senes of businass risk workshops are taking
place to help HSE staff create risk registers, review exsting arrangements and share experiences. Hisk
management has also been built into HSE training modules and guidance on programme management. The
Director of Resources and Planning (HSE's business risk champion) gave a detailed presentation 1o the HSE
Bloard in August 2006 to help clarify its risk appetite.

HSE monitors ite performance on risk handling against Treasury's Risk Management Assessment
Framework and has reported annually to the Civil Service Management Board's sub-group on risk. The HSC
Audit Comimittee also receives regular updates on progress with business nsk management.

4 The risk and control framework

HSE’s Risk Management Framework codifies its overall strategy for managing business risks. It emphasises
the need for business risk management to be integrated with the organisation’s management system to
ensure that risks are managed effectively and proportionately. It has been updated this ysar to redefine and
clarify key roles and responsibilities in the process.

HSG comprises a Chair and nine members (Commissioners). It is the principal body in relation to the
regulation of health and safety at work in Great Britain, HSC's role s to protect the workforce against health
and safety risks. It is supported in this by HSE and the local authorities, and provides them with strategic
direction. HSC takes policy decisions and advises Ministers, including those from other Departments.

HSC discusses performance reports quartery, in paraliel to the HSE Board. This involves reviewing key
performance Indicators and informaticn presented in the balanced scorecard and the PSA performance
report. The Audit Committee, on HSC's behalf, also reviews the corporate nisk management plan,

The HSE Board comprises senior managers in operations, policy and corporate support, togeather with
the Chief Scientific Adviser, the Legal Adviser, and the Chief Executive of HSL. Iis role is to manage HSE's
performance and any risks that threaten achevement of HSE's chjectives. This includes taking coordinated
decisions to ensure HSE remains in a sound financial position, directing improved business efficiency
and ensuring that HSE progresses toward the PSA targets. The Board meets formally monthly to make
decisions about health and safety issues, policy and strategic finance and personnel matters. Since the
third quarter of 2006/07, the Board has received an integrated performance and risk report. This draws the
links between HSE's corporate level risks and their current {and potential) effect on performance as shown
in the balanced scorecard and performance repars on the PSA targets. HSC and the minister responsibile
for work-related health and safety (DWP's Pariamentary Under Sacretary in the Lords) alse receive and
consider the report. The HSC Chair and HSE's Chief Executive meat the Minister maonthly to discuss a range
of key issues, including progress on performance, in more depth.

The corporate risk management plan (CRMF) sets out HSE's strategic risks and is the focus for
business risk management at corporate level. Board-level risk owners are responsible for ensuring adeduate
measures are in place to manage each risk, and monitoring the adequacy of these measures. if needed,
further control measures are added. Risks are reviewed regularly (quarterly at HSE Board level) o test
whether they should rermain in the CRMP and that mitigation measures are appropriate. Board members
have supplied the HSC and HSE Accounting Officers with letters of assurance that include an assessment
aof internal controls within their commands.

The balanced scorecard transiates HSC/E's miss:on and strategy into a balanced set of performance
IMEasures cmreﬁngmheyamamsufthaurgaisatmspadmnm{aaaetwthkﬁﬂsaum Plan].
During 2005/06, HSE carried out an extensive review of the balanced scorecard so that it aligns more
closely with HSC/E's priorities and to maximise its effectivenass as a performance management ool
The result was a refreshed scorecard, with its measures grouped under three business perspectives
(delivery, resource management and learning and growth) and tied directly to any rasidual red risks on the
mmHﬁmmmmwmmmmlmWMwm to the Board and HEC

during 2006/07.

a1
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The resource management element of the balanced scorecard is complemented by a monthly Finance
and Staffing paper, which is a standing item at the HSE Board. It provides a more detailed review of current
financial outturn and outlook information and an assessment of financial risk to support strategic
resource decisions,

Established corporate policies continue 1o operate covering a wide range of issues. They provide part
of an effective conirol framework across a range of risks including the health and safety of HSE's own staff
and contractors, human resource matlers, workforce strategy, planning, finance, accounting, procurement,
information technology and regularity, propriety and authorisation of expenditure. Guidance on related
arrangemeants is set out in codes and other instructions.

The use of resources is delegated and agreed in writing, from HSE's Accounting Officer to those
individual senior managers who are the main budget holders (MBHs). HSE's and HSL's budgets are
monitored as a whole and monthly reports provided to MBHs, the Finance Director, the Accounting Officer
and Commissioners (and in turn to the Depariment and Treasury) based on the latest resource outturm
information provided by HSE's Directorates.

HSE delivers a proportion of its work through programmes and projects. Further work has
continued in 2006407 to develop the project and programme management skills to ensure successiul
delivery of targets. Formal programme and project management techniques are used for the planning
and delivery of all programme activity. Quarterly reports on progress on strategic programmes
include a report on the main risks to the programmes and how they are being managed.

Thi following functions were transfamed out of and in to HSE:

B responsibility for rail safety transfermed from HSC/E to the Office of Rail Regulation with effect from
1 April 2006. HSE transferred its rail related resource to the Department for Transport;

| from 1 October 2006, regulatory functions around public safety aspects of the electricity distribution
network transferred from DTI's Engineering Inspectorate to HSE;

® in October 2006, DEFRA announced that HSE had agreed to undertake the UK Competent Authority
function for REACH (Registration, Evaluation and Authorisation of Chemicals) on behalf of the Secratary
of State for England and the relevant Ministers or deparments in Scotland, Wales and Northem Ireland.
HSE set up a REACH Project Board to ensure that the necessary arrangements were in place before
the legisiation entered into force on 1 June 2007;

W from 1 April 2007, HSE became the Licensing Authority (AALA) under the Activity Centres (Young
Parsons' Salety) Act 1985; and

W on 1 April 2007, the Office for Civil Muclear Safety transferred from DI togather with the LUK
Safeguards Office.

5 Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officers, we have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. Cur review of this is informed by the work of the internal auditors and executive managers within
HSE who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework, and
comments made by he external auditors in their managament letter and other reports. We have baen
advised on the implications of the result of our review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by
the Board, the Audit Committes and the risk owners; a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

The Audit Committee, chaired by a Commissioner, met four times in 2006/07. The Health and Safety
Commission agreed revised terms of reference for the Audit Committes in March 2006 so that its
membership is composed entirely of non-executives. These revised terms of reference and constitution bring
the Audit Committee into line with HM Treasury guidance on audit committees. One independent
non-executive member was appointed during 2006/07 and a second one has been appointed since
31 March 2007,

HSE's Internal Audit and Assurance Unit has direct access to the HSGC and HSE Accounting Officers and
operates to government Internal Audit Standards. HSL has an internal audit function supplied by a private
sector auditor that also works to government Internal Audit Standards. Annual audit plans, which are risk
based, are approved by the relevant Audit Committees, to whom Internal Audit make regular reports. All
work undertaken is subject to internal quality assurance processes.

For each assignment, internal audit provide an opinion on the adequacy and effectivenass of the
system of internal control and make recommendations for improvernent. Recommendations arising

e
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HS C Health and Safety Commission

The Certificate and Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General
to the Houses of Parliament

dd

I certify that I have audited the financial statements of the Health and Safety Commission for the year ended
31 March 2007 under the Health and Safety at Work erc. Act 1974, These comprise the Operating Cost
Statement and the related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that
report as having been audired.

Respective responsibilities of the Commission, Chairman, and Auditor

The Commission and Chairman as Accounting Officers are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the
Femuneration Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc.

Act 1874 and the Department for Work and Pensions” directions made thereunder and for ensuring the regularity
of financial transactions. The Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Health and Safety Executive are jointly
responsible for the preparation of the Remuneration Report and the other contents of the Annual Report. Thesa
responsibilities are set out in the Statement of the Commission's, the Executive's, the Chairman’s and the Chief
Executive's Responsibilities,

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, and with International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Iraland).

I report to you my opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial staternents and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and the Department for Weark and Pensions’
directions made thereunder. | also report whether, in my opinion, certain information given in the Annual Report,
which comprises the Foreword, Achievements during the year, background information on key activities, Policy,
Science, engineenng and technology and Managing Our Business is consistent with the financial staterments.
| also repont whether in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the puUrposes
intanded by Pariament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. In addition, |
report to you if the Commission has not kept proper accounting reconds, if | have not received all the information
and explanations | require for my audit, or if information specified by HM Treasury regarding remuneration and
other transactions is not disclosad.

I review whether the Statement on Internal Control reflects the Commission's compliance with HM Treasury’s
guidance, and | report if it does not. | am not required to consider whether this Statement on Internal Control
covers all risks and controls, or farm an opinion on the effectivenass of the Commission's ocorporate governance
proceduras or its risk and contral procedures.

| read the other information contained in the Annual Repont and consider whether it is consistent with
the audited financial statements. | consider the implications for my report if | become aware of any apparent
rmisstatements or material nconsistencies with the financial statements. My responsibdities do not extend to any
other information.
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Basis of audit opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. My audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts, disclosuras and regularity of financial fransactions included in the financial statements and the part
of the Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the Commission and Accounting Officer in the preparation of the financial statements,
andaf whether the accounting policies are most appropriate to the Commission's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequataly disclosed.

| planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which | considered
necessany in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statemants and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or ermor and that in all material respects the expenditure and income have been
applied to the purposes intended by Pariament and the financial transactions conform 1o the authorities
which govern them. In forming my opinion | also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statemeants and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinions

Audit opinion

In my opinicn:

m the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc.
Act 1974 and directions made thereunder by the Department for Work and Pensions, of the state of
the Commission’s affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of its net operating cost for the year then ended;

B the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and the Department for
Work and Pensions' directions made thereunder; and

B information given within the Annual Report, which comprises the Foreword, Achieniemants during
the year, background information on key activities, Policy, Science, engineenng and technology and
Managing Our Business is consistent with the financial statements.

Audit opinion on regularnty
In my opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income have bean applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authonties which govem them.

Report
| have no observations to make on these financial statements.

U b

John Bourn

Comptroller and Auditor General
Mational Aucit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road,
Victoria, Loncdon SWIW 93P

19 June 2007
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HS C Health and Safety Commission

Operating Cost Statement for the year ended 31 March 2007

2006/07 2005/06
Motes £'000 E'000
Administration costs
Staff costs 3 507 503
Other administration costs 4 383 245
Gross administration costs 890 848
Oparating income 3
Met operating costs 890 B48

Allincome and expenditure is derived from continuing operations.

The MNotes on pages 47 to 49 form part of these accounts.

Bill Callaghan Chairman
Health and Safety Commission
Accounting Officer

13 June 2007

46
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HS C Health and Safety Commission

Notes to the Accounts

1 Statement of accounting policies

The financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the 200607 Financial Reporting Manual
(FReM) (www.financial-reporting.gov.uk) issued by HM Treasuny. The particular accounting policies adopted
by HSC are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with the items considered
rmaterial in relation to the accounts.

{a) Accounts Directions

In accordance with Accounts Directions issuad by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury,
the Health and Safety Commission and Health and Safety Executive have prepared a joint Statement of
Responsibilities and Statement on Internal Control and separate Operating Cost Statements. HSC has not
produced a Balance Shest as any assets and kabilities of HSC are included in the HSE Balance Sheet and
are not material in value in the context of HSE balances (see Note 2 Request for Resourcas). HSC has no
bank account and all direct and indirect expenditurs is paid for by HSE, so the production of a Cash Flow
Staternent is deemed inappropriate. HSC has no need to produce Parliamentary Control Schedules and
the relevant information is contained in those schedules within DWP's accounts (refer Note 2 with regard to
Request for Resources).

(b) Accounting convention

Consolidated accounts have not been prepared, with the agreement of HM Treasury and National

Audit Office, on the basis that there is a statutory requirement to produce separate accounts for HSC and
HSE and it would be administratively burdensome and provide no additional information for the reader of

the accounts.

(¢} Pension costs
The cument Chairman is not a member of the Principal Givil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) but

arrangements exist whereby the Health and Safety Executive make pension payments analogous 10 those
that would have been made if he had been a member of the PCSPS and are payable out of the curent
year's funds that are made available. A notional pensicn cost of 25.5%, (2005/06 — 24.6%), is added to the

Chalman's amolurments.

The provision is included in the HSE accounts.

The appointment of Commission members is non-pensionatie.

The employees of the Health and Safety Commission, other than the Chairman and Commission members,

are civil servants to whom the conditions of the Superannuation Acts 1965 and 1972 and subsequent
amendments apply. For details of the schemes please refer to HSE accounts, accounting policy Mote i),

4T
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2 Request for Resources

Pursuant to Section 43 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, the Commission is financed by
Request for Resources from the Department for Work and Pensions (Request for Resources 2).

The total Request for Resources received by the Health and Safety Commission from DWE for the
financial year 2006/07 was £232 512 000 and after deducting £506 725 for staff costs and £383 586 for
other operating charges, the sum of £231 621 689 was allocated to the Health and Safety Executive. Thess
transactions pass through Reserves in the Balance Sheet but produce a nil value in HSC's accounts.

£'000
Opening general fund 1 Apedl 2006 MIL
Met parliamentary cash funding 232512
Met operating cost 890
Cash transfer to HSE (refer to HSE Cash Flow Staterment) 231 622
Closing general fund 31 March 2007 NIL
Expenditure of the Health and Safety Commission
3 Staff numbers and costs
(a) Staff costs of the Health and Safety Commission
200607 200506
£'000 £'000
Other staff engaged
Staff with a permanent on the objectives
UK contract of HSE Total
Wages and salaries 425 - 425 430
Social security costs 43 - 43 39
Pension costs 38 - 39 34
Subtotal 807 - 507 503
Less recovenas in respect - = =
of outward secondments
Total net costs 507 - 507 503

(b) The average number of employees during the year of the accounts, other than the Chairman and
Commission members

2006/07 Nos. 2005/06 Nos,
Permanently
employed staff Others Tatal Tatal
Mon-specialist staf L - 5.5 55

Mote: For further detals on pension amangements for non-specialist staff, please refer to HSE accounts (accounting
policy MNote 11} and Note 3).

ST
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HSE Health and Safety Executive

The Certificate and Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General
to the Houses of Parliament

I certify that | have audited the financial statements of the Health and Safety Executive for the vear ended
31 March 2007 under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974. These comprise the Operating Cost
Statement, the Balance Sheer, the Cashflow Statement and Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses and
the related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within
them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as
having been audired.

Respective responsibilities of the Executive, Chief Executive and Auditor

The Executive and Chief Executive as Accounting Officers are responsible for preparing the financial statements
in accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and the Department for Work and Pensions’
directions made thereunder and for ensuring the regularity of financial transactions. These responsibilities

are set out in the Statement of the Commission’s, the Executive's, the Chairman's and the Chief Executive's
Hasponsibilities.,

My responsibility is to audit the financial staterments and the part of the Remuneration Report 1o be audited
in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, and with International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland).

I report to you my opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whather the
financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been proparty preparad in
accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and the Department for Work and Pensions'
directions made thereunder. | also report whether, in my opinion, certain information given in the Annual Report,
which comprises the Foreword, Achievernents during the year, background information on key activities, Policy,
Science, engineering and technology and Managing Our Business is consistent with the financial statements.
| also report whether in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied 1o the purposes
intended by Pariament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. In addition,
| report to you if, the Executive has not kept proper accounting records, if | have not received all the information
and explanations | require for my audit, or if information specified by HM Treasury regarding remuneration and
other transactions is not disclosed.

| revienw whether the Statement on Internal Control reflects the Executive's compliance with HM Treasury's
guicance, and | report if it does not. | am not required to consider whether this staterment covers all risks and
controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Executive’s comporate governance procedures or its risk
and confrol procedures.

I read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whather it is consistant with
the audited financial statements. | consider the implications for my report if | become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. My responsibilities do not extend to any
other information.

Basis of audit opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and reland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. My audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts,
disclosures and regularity of financial transactions included in the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the Executive and Accounting Officer in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whather
the accounting policies are most appropriate to the Executive's circumstances, congistently applhied and
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adequately disclosad.

| planned and pedformed my auwdit o as to obtain all the information and explanations which | considersd
necessany in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonabla assurance that the financial
statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstaternent,
whether caused by fraud or emor and that in all maternal respects the expenditure and income have been
applied 10 the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform (o the authorities
which govern them. In forming my opinion | also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinions

Audit opinion

In ry opinion:

B the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc.
Act 1974 and directions made thereunder by the Department for Work and Pensions, of the state of
the Exacutive’s affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of its net operating cost for the year then ended;

m the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report 1o be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc, Act 1874 and the Department for
Work and Pansions directions made thereunder; and

W information given within the Annual Report, which comprises the Foreword, Achievements during
the year, background information on key actiities, Policy, Science, engineering and technology and
Managing Our Business is consistent with the financial statements.

Audit opinion on regularity
In my opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income have been apphed to the purposes
intended by Parament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Report
| have no cbservations to make on thesa financial statements.

U B

John Bourn Comptroller and Auditor General
National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Falace Road,

Victoria, London SWIW 95P

19 June 2007

a1
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H SE Health and Safety Executive

Operating Cost Statement for the year ended 31 March 2007

Restated
2006/07 2005706
Notes £'000 £'000

Administration costs
Staff costs a 155 913 151 877
Other administration costs 4 99 071 a7 708
Gross administration costs 254 984 249 585
Operating income £ (50 545) (45 258
EU income (5] (308) (56T)
Net administration costs 204 131 203 782

Programme costs

Expenditure 5 av 930 42 267
Less income 5and & (9 215) (7 BY2)
Met programme costs 28 715 34 385
Net operating cost 232 846 238157

MNote: All incoma and expenditune is dervad from contnuing operations,

Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses for the year ended 31 March 2007

2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Net gain/{loss) on revaluation of tangible fixed assets (refer Note 14) 1437 1316
Actuarial loss on pensions by analogy (157) (504)
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 1280 Bz

The Motes on pages 55 to 77 form part of these accounts.
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HSE Health and Safety Executive

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2007

Restated
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Motes £'000 £'000 2000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets Ta B4 77T 83 440
Intangible assets [y Pt
Debtors:
faling due after more than one year 10 4212 4 464
Current assets
Stocks 9 1 525 1 249
Debtors 10 25 825 23 220
Cash at bank and in hand 11 10 542
27 451 _251 011
Creditors (amounts falling due
within one year) 12 (19 559) (19 462)
Met current assets 7892 5549
Total assets less current liabilities 96 960 83 453
Creditors [amounts falling due after
miore than one year) 12 (63 428) (62 645
Provisions for liabilities and charges 13 (5 938) (4 400)
27 596 26 404
Taxpayers' aguity
General fund 20 18 473 18 381
Revaluation reserve 14 9123 8023
27 596 26 404

Tha Moles on pages 55 to 77 form part of these accourts

F {T_-:- X e vy ..’,_r\_ Iy

L'\\_T F::E)-q_n i
Gecffrey Podger CB Chisf Executive
Health and Safety Executive

Accounting Officer
14 June 2007
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HSE Health and Safety Executive

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2007

Restatad

2006/07 2005/06

E'000 £'000

Met cash outfliow from operating activities (227 676) (217 524)
Capital expenditure and financial invesiment {7 273) (5 353)
Heceipts due to DWP which are outside the scope of HSE':s activities 304 1
Fayments of amounts dus to DWP (2) (1)
Financing 231 622 223 745
(Decrease)/increase in cash in the period (3 025) 868

(See Mote 15 for Notes to the Cash Flow Staternent)

The Moles on pages 55 to 77 form part of these accounts
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HSE Health and Safety Executive

Notes to the Accounts

1 Statement of accounting policies

Tha financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2006/07 Financial Reporting Manual
{FReM) (www.financial-reporting.gov.uk) issued by HM Treasury. The particular accounting policies adopted
by HSE are described below. They have beon applied consistently in dealing with the items considerac
matarial in relation to the accounts. The financial statements consalidate the figures for the Health and
Safety Laboratory (HSL).

The accounting policias contained in the FReM follow generally accepted accounting practice for
companies (LK GAAP] to the extent that is meaningiul and appropnate to the public sector.

{a} Accounts Direction

In accordance with Accounts Directions issued by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury,
the Health and Satety Commizsion and Health and Safety Executive have preparad a joint Statement of
Responsibilities and Statement on Intemal Contral. HSE has no need to produce Parkamentary Control
Schedules (the Statement of Pariamentary Supply and the Stalement of Bescarces by Departmental Aims
and Objectives) and the relevant information is contained n those schedibes within OWP's accounts (refer
HSC Accounts Mote 2 with regard to Request for Resources).

b) Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
renvaluation of fixed assets (including the depreciated replacement cost of the specialist laboratory site at
Bupdon) and stocks, where material, at thair value to the business by reference to their cument costs.

(c) Government grants

Grants recaivable
Pursuant to Section 43 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, the Commission has been financed

by Request for Resources from DWE

The Commission pays to the Executive such sums as the Commission considers appropriate for the
purpose of enabling the Executive to perform its functions. The Request for Resources is credited o the
General Fund in the year in which it is received.

Grants payable A
Grants payable are recorded as expenditure in the period when the underlying event or activity giing
antitiemant to the grant has been complatad.

(d) Tangible fixed assets
All assets are held by the Health and Safety Executive on behalf of the Health and Safety Commission.
ltems of equipment costing less than £2000 are charged to expenditure in the year of purchase, except
for computer equipment costing over £500 but less than £2000 and items of furniture costing less than
£2000 which are grouped for capitalisation by year of acquisition.
Items of equiprment purchased under research contracts and held by outside bodies are charged to
expenditure in the year of purchase.

Fixed assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition and installation.
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The respective values of all freehold properties and only those leasehold properties that qualify as finance
leases (refer accounting policy Note m) are included in the Balance Sheet. Land and buildings are valued
on an existing use basis except for the specialist laboratory site at Buxton which has been included at
depreciated replacement cost.

Expenditure in respect of major capital refurbishment and improvement of properties occupied but not
owned by HSE is capitalised because the expenditure provides a long-term continuing benefit to
the organisation.

Allland and building assets are assessed each year for the lkelihood of a material change in value as at
31 March. Where the directors consider that it is likely that there has been a material change in value, assets
are revalued using a professional valuation or appropriate indices. All other assets are subject to revaluation
each year at 31 March, using a professional valuation or appropriate indices. Professional valuations, where
appropriate, are undertaken at least every five vears, in accordance with the Frel and FRS15.

Jones Lang LaSalle professionally revalued all land and building assets on the Buxton site as at
31 March 2005. Additionally, the freehold property at Carlisle was independently valued at 31 March 2006
by Donaldsons, Chantered Surveyors. In each case, the valuations were in accordance with the Appraisal
and Valuation Standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

S e ———— i —— i N

(e) Depreciation
Freehold land is not depreciated, '
Depreciation is provided on all other tangible fixed assets from the date of acquisition.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the replacement cost or valuation of an asset evenly over its !
expected usaful life, except for vehicles acquired for the car leasing scheme, where 0% of the original )
cost is depreciated over the three year life of the contract. Assets in the course of construction and residual f’
interests in off-balance sheet PRl contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into usa or i
reverts to H3E respectively.
Tangible fived assets are depreciated at the following rates to write them down to estimated residual
valug on a straight-line Basis over their estimated useful lives.

Buildings Freehold over 50 years or remaining lifa i-

assessed by the valuers i
Leazehold | over period of lease or 1o next rent review excent for !

HEL PFI building which iz 60 vears designed life i

Specialist plant OVEr remaining life

Furniture up to 15 years except for furniture under
the HSL PF contract which is 30 years

Office machinery, publicity and

major scientific equipment up to 10 years

IT equipment up to T years

Printing/typesetting and

telecommunications equipment up to 7 years |

Vishicles up to 7 years

Maotor vehicles leased to staff up to 3 years

ifi Intangible assets

Software licences that exceed the capitalisation limit of £500, and which can be separately identified and
used independently of a particular asset, are capitalisad at cost as intangible fixed assats. Licences arg
amonised, on a straight-line basis, over the shorter of the licence period or five years. Amortisation is
provided from the month of acquisition.

(@) Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve reflects the unrealised element of the cumulative balance of inclexation and
revaluation adjustments. Surpluses arising on the revaluation of fixed assets are credited to the revaluation
resarve. Deficits are charged to the resarve in respect of amounts previously credited; the balance of any
deficit is charged to the Operating Cost Statement.
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(h) Stocks and work in progress

Stocks and work in progress are valued as follows:

B finished goods and priced goods for resale are valued at cost or, where materially different, currant
replacement cost, and at net realisable value only when they sither cannot or will not be used. The cost
of free publications is written off in the vear in which it is incurred:

B work in progress is valued at the lower of cost, including appropriate overheads, and net realisabie value;

T consumable stores items are charged to the Operating Cost Staternent on receipt.

1] legn currency
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into stering at the exchange rates
prevailing at the year-end,

Transactions which are denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange
rate ruling on the date of each transaction and transiation differences are dealt with through the Operating
Cost Statement,

(il Research
Expenditure on research is written off in the year in which it is incurmed,

(k) Capital charge

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utlised by HSE, is included in operating costs. The charge is
calculated at the government's standard rate of 3.5% in real terms on the average of all assets less
labilities, except for donated assets and cash balances with Office of HM FPaymaster General, whera tha

charge is nil,

(I} Pension costs

Past and present employees are coverad by the provisions of the Civil Service Pension Schemeas which ara
described n Nate 3. The defined benafit elements of the schemes are unfunded and are non-contributony
except in respect of dependents’ benefits. HSE recognises the expecied costs of these elements on a
systemnatic and rational basis over the perad during which it benefits from employees’ services by payment
ta the Principal Crvil Service Pension Schemes (PCSPS) of amounts calculated on an accruing basis.
Liability for payment of future benefits is a charge on the PCSPS. In respect of the defined contribution
alement of the schermes, HSE recognises the contributions payable for the year.

{m) Leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borns by HSE, the asset

iz recorded as a tangible asset and a debt is recorded to the lessor of the minimum lzase paymeants
discounted by tha interest rate implicit in the lease. The interest element of the finance lease payment is
charged to the Operating Cost Staternent over the period of the lease at a constant rate in relation to the
balance outstanding. Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to the
Operating Cost Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(n) Administration and programme expenditure
The Operating Cost Statement is analysed between administration and programme costs. Administration
costs reflect the costs of running the organisation as defined under the administration cost-control
regime, togather with associated operating income. Income is analysed in the notes between that which,
under the regime, is allowed to be ofiset against gross adrministrative costs in determining the outturn
against the administration cost limit, and that operating income which is not. Programme costs reflect
nor-administration costs, including payments of grants and other disbursements by the Exacutive.

In 2006/07, expenditure in respect of travel and subsistence, staff development and
training and legal costs were accounted for on an accruals basis for the first time.

(o) Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions

PFI transactions (refer Note 22) have been accounted for in accordance with Treasury Technical Note No. 1
(Revised), entitied How to Account for PFI transactions as required by the Financial Reporting Manisal.
Where the balance of risk and rewards of ownership of the PFl asset are borne by the PRI operator, the PFI
payments are recorded as an operating cost. Where HSE has contributed assets, a prepayment for their fair
value is recognised and amortised over the life of the PFI contract. Where at the end of the PFI contract a
property reverts to HSE, the difference between the expacted fair value of the residual assets on reversion
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and any agreed payment on reversion is built up over the life of the contract by capitalising part of the unitary
charge each year,

Whera the balance of risks and rewards of cwnership of the PP assal is borne by HSE, the asset
is recognised as a fixed asset and the liability to pay for it is accounted for as a finance lease. Contract
payments are apportioned between an imputed finance lease charge and a sarvice charge.

{p) Provisions

HSE provides for legal or constructive obligations which are of uncertain timing or amount at the Balance
Sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using
tha Treasury discount rate of 2.2% (2005/06 - 2.2%) in real terms,

{g) Contingent liabilities
Disclosure conforms to FRS 12, including discounting where the time value of money is material.

{r) Value Added Tax

Mast of HSE's activities are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, cutput tax does not apply and input
tax on purchases is not recoverable. Imecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category

or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input tax is
recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT,

(s) Operating income

Operating income is income which relates directly to the operating activities of HSE. It principally comprises
fees and charges for services provided on a full cost basis to external customers. Operating income is
stated nat of VAT,

SIS

e
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2 Transfer of functions and restatements

Restatement of Balance Sheet and Operating Cost Statement at 31 March 2006

Function Restatements
Published transferredto due to change
accounts at  Office of Rail  of aceounting Restated at
| 31 March 2006 Regulation policy 31 March 2006
Balance Sheet £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tanglte e Acset 83 482 (42) 83 440
Debtors faling due after mone 4 468 {4 4 464
than one year
Current assets
Stocks 1249 - 1249
Debtors 25 084 (1.864) 23 220
Cash in bank and in hand 542 540
Creditors (amounts faling dus (18 964) 281 (1 079 (19 463
within one year)
Creditors (amounts falling due (62 649) (62 649)
after miore than one year)
Provisions for liabilities {4 400 {4 400)
and charges
Met assets 28 812 1 329) {1 079) 26 404
Taxpayers equity
General fund 20 789 (1329 {1079 18 381
Revaluation reserve 8023 - 8023
28 812 (1329 (1 078) 26 404
Operating Cost Statement
Staff costs 161 036 (3 159) 151 &7 7
Other administration costs 100 518 (3 BED) 1079 87 708
Gross administration costs 261 554 (13 048) 1079 249 585
Operating income 51 119) 5 BE3 (45 256)
EU Income: (56T) [567)
MNet administration costs 208 868 (7 185) 1078 203 762
Programme costs
Expenciitura 42 280 (13) - 42 267
Income (7 872) - {7 872)
Net programme costs 34 408 (13} - 34 395
Met operating cost 244 276 (7 198) 1079 238 157

50
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Reported figures at 31 March 2006 have been restated as a result of the following:

B Responsibility for rail safety functions was transferred to the Office of Rail Regulation at 1 Aprl 2006.

B Adjustments in respect of expenditure (travel and subsistence, staff development and training and legal
costs) that ware accounted for on an accruals basis for the first time in 20068/07.

3 Staff numbers and costs of the Health and Safety Executive

(a) Staff costs
Restated
2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Staff with a Other staff
permanent UK engaged on the
contract objectives of HSE Total Total
Wages and salarias 119 058 2976 122 034 119 345
Social security costs 9 BBG 43 8924 8 904
Other pension costs 24 68O 2% 24 774 23 251
Total 153 624 3113 156 737 152 500
Less recovernies in respect (B24) - (B24) (623}
of outward secondments
Total net costs 152 800 3113 155913 151 877

Mote: The Principal Ciil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) is an unfunded multi-empiover defined benefit schame bt
HSE is unable to identify is share of the underlying assets and Eabilities, The scheme actuary valued the scheme as at
31 March 2003. You can find details in the resource accounts of the Cabinet Office: Civil Superannuation

[whanw. chvilsenice-pensions, gov.uk),

For 2006/07 employer contributions of £24.7 mllion were payvable to the PCSPS (2005/06 - £24.5 million] at ore of
the four rates in the range 17.1 to 25.5% of pensionable pay (2005/06 - 16.2 to 24.6%), based on salary bands. The
scheme's Actuary reviews employer contributions every lour years following a full scheme valuation. From 2007/08, the
salary bands will ba revised but the rates will stay the same, The contribution rates are set to meet the casts of the
banafits accrung during 200607 to be paid when tha member retires, and not the: banefits paid during this penod to
existing pensionars,

= T

Outstanding contributions amounting to £2.3 mlion wene pavabile to the Cavl Suparannuation Viote at 31 Mareh 2007
and ang included in creditors (see Mote 12),

Emmmsmmtmmmapmmmmmm.aﬂmmbﬂnﬁmmﬂnm contribution,
Employer's contributions of C26 746 (2005/06 - C17 736) were paid 1o ane or mone of a paned of three appointed
stakeholder pension providers, Employer contributions are age retated and range from 3 to 12.5% of pensionable pay.
Empioyers alzo match employes contributions up to 3% of pensionable pay. In addition, amgloyer contributions of
121:-'45.0.3%0!mmmm.mmlumm%mwﬂnmmmlmmmmmmm
payments on death in sanice and il health of these employess,

S mmmmiﬂ-mmqm—mmhmtwmmmmmmmhm

year amounted to £10 225 (2005/06 - £7233). These llabdities are not the responsibility of HSE but are to be paid by the
Cidl Superannuation Vobe,

(b} The average number of whole time equivalent persons employed during the year

Restated
2006/07 2005/06

Other staff

Permanantly engaged on the
employed staffi  objectives of HSE Total Total
3604 71 3675 3 857
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4 Non-staff administration costs of the Health and Safety Executive

Hestated
2006/07 2005/06
£°000 £'000
Flflifcals under operating leases:
Hire of plant and machines 6 a1
Operating leases 8637 g 247
PFI service chargas:
Off-balance sheet contracts 27 773 24 761
On-balance sheet PFl contracts 3323 3216
Interest charges - On-batance sheet PFI contracts 5 588 5 442
Auditor's remuneration 94 83
Mon-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation of fived assets & 291 B 281
Cost of capital charge 1007 1161
Loss on revaluation of fived assets 159 151
Loss on disposal of fived azsets arnsing from Redgrave Court relocation - 527
Other (profit)loss on disposal of fixed assets 241 159
Provisions: Provided in year 2576 1 604
Urwinding of discount on provigions 30 22
Other non-cash items ] a7
Other axpenditura 43 3 44 916
89 071 a7 708
Note: Travel, subsistence and hospitality expenses for the Executive memibers were £38 529 (2005/06 - £34 977),
while the total for all other staff was £11 039 873 (200506 - £11 435 260 (restated)).
Thera werns no payments made 10 the National Audit Office (MAQ] for non-audit work camed out in 1ha year,
Analysis of other expenditure
Restated
2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000
Accommodation 13 968 13583
Travel and subsistence 11 076 11 470
Other 18 297 19853
43 341 44 216

61
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& Income

The activities of the Executive include certain chargeabla services, sach of which is subject to a financial
objectve of full cost recovery. Memorandum Trading Accounts are prepared whera the cost of a particular

- service exceeds £100 000. The charges for these activities, which are exclusive of VAT, include provision for
the recovery of notional intenest, apart from the licensing of nudlear installations where the notional charge is

not an expense that can be recovered under the Nuclear Installations Act 1965,

Restated
Surplus/ surplus/
Cost Income (deficit) {deficit)
2006/07 2005/06
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(i) HSE fees and charges
Licensing of nuclear installations 24 211 24 211 -
Safety-related research in the nuclear industry 586 586 -
Genatically modified organisms 78 121 43 (2
First-aid approvals 279 168 {111) (124)
Asbestos Licensing Unit 367 376 9 T
FEFA fees and levy 561 561 - -
Authonsation of biccides and pesticides 674 911 237 49
Motification of new substances 320 444 124 B5
Control of major accident hazards 6 678 6 690 12 (164)
Enforcement of offshore safety legislation 8 526 B 047 (479 641
Enforcement of gas safety management regulations 447 434 (13} (8
Total HSE fees and charges 42 727 42 549 (178) 424
Health and Safaty Laboratory external customers 5 653 5653
Health and Safety Laboratory EU incoma 204 204
Cither fees and agency charges - 121
Total HSL income 5 857 5978
Total fees and charges at 31 March 2007 48 584 48 527
Total fees and charges at 31 March 2006 [restated) 44 159 44 663
(i) HSE sales and other income
Sale of publications 2 460 3 Bs2 1392 1 360
Other sales/income 7 585
Elincoma 104 104
Total sales and other income at 31 March 2007 2 564 11 541
Total sales and other income at 31 March 2006 5 061 a 030

(restated)

This analysis conforms 1o the HM Treasury's The Fees and Charges Guide and is not intended to comply with SSAP 25

Segmental Reporting.
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7a Tangible fixed assets
Payments on
Land Furniture Account and
and Information Motor Plant and and Assets under
Buildings Technology Vehicles Machinery Fittings Construction Tatal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation 78 578 3528 3238 13303 10815 1845 111308
al 1 April 2006
(restated)
Reclassifications 844 - - 146 - (990) -
(cost)
Additions in year 2420 325 7o 710 806 1 756 6 808
Revaluations 1250 (93) as (95) 205 - 1 302
in year
Disposals (245) (185) (753) (363) (248) - [1794)
during year
Balance at 82 847 3 575 anz 1370 11 668 2611 117714
31 March 2007
Depraciation at 11 354 2752 1 068 9 186 3 508 27 868
1 April 2006
(restated)
Charge in year 3 598 360 S67 853 907 - 6 285
Revaluations 57 (45) 12 (64d) 65 - 24
in year
Disposals (66) (185) (435) (328) (228) - [1240)
during year
Accumulated 14 943 2 881 1212 9 649 4 252 - 3293r
depreciation at
31 March 2007
Met book value at 67 904 694 2100 4 052 7416 2611 B84 77T
31 March 2007
MNet book value at 67 224 776G 217 4117 7307 1845 83 440
31 March 2006
{restated)
Asset financing
Owned 11125 694 2100 4 052 4 890 1896 24757
Finance leased - = = 7 " : T
On-balance sheet 56 779 - - - 2 526 - 59305
PFI contracts
PFIl residual - = - - - 715 715
interests
Net book value at 67 904 694 2100 4 052 7416 2611 B4TTIT
31 March 2007

Depreciation changed in the year on assets under the PF contract was £1.055 million (200:5/06 - £1.036 million).

&
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Analysis of land and buildings between freehold, long and short leasehold

The net book value of land and Short Leasehold
buildings at 31 March 2007 comprises: Fraeholds leaseholds improvements Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation at 1 Apsil 2006 5 360 58127 15 091 78 578
Reclassifications - - Ba4 Bad
Additions in year 30 - 2 390 2420
Revaluations in year (1) 1251 - 1250
Disposals during year (20) (225) - (245)
Balance at 31 March 2007 5 369 59153 18 325 B2 847
Depreciation at 1 April 2006 146 1411 8 7ar 11 354
Charge in year 161 arr 2 460 3 598
Frevaluations in year T 50 - 57
Disposals during year {2) (64) - (66)
Accumulated depreciation at 3na 2374 12 257 14 943
31 March 2007
Net book value at 31 March 2007 5 057 56 779 6 068 67 904
Met book value at 31 March 2006 5214 56 T16 5294 E7 224

7b Intangible assets

e

Software licences

£'000
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2006 0
Additions in year 85
Revaluations in year 0
Disposals during year 0
Balance at 31 March 2007 85
Amortisation at 1 April 2006 0
Charge in year [
Revaluations in year 0
Dizposals during year 0
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2007 i1
Net book value at 31 March 2007 79
Net book value at 31 March 2006 0

With effect from 1 Apeil 2006, software assels, being those over the capitakisation imit of £500, which can be separately
wentified and used independently of a particular tangible fixad assel, are capitalised as intangible fived assats,






Hsth and Salety Commizsion Annual Repon and he Healih and Salety Commission/Executive Acoounts 200607

10 Debtors
10(a) Analysis by type
Restated
2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000
Amounis faling due within one year:
Trade debtors 6 504 B 461
Imprest/advancas 494 447
Prepayments 3087 1726
Current part of PRl prepayment 153 153
Taxation: VAT debior 21186 agia
Other dettors 42 3
Accrued ncome 13 429 10517
25 B25 23220
Amounts faling due after more than one year;
PF1 prepayment 4076 4 230
Cther prepayments 2 56
Imprestsfadvances 134 178
4212 4 464
Total 30 037 27 684

Maote: The imprests/advances total of EB27 122 (2005/06 - D625 2700 includes £185 897 (2006/06 — £243 063)
advances of salary for house purchase, £157 112 (2005/06 - £157 064) advances of salary for season ticket purchasa,
E134 257 (2005/06 - £144 097) imprests and £149 856 (2005/06 = £81 048) ather advances. Thers wera

32 officers who had £2500 or more outstanding at 31 March 2007 which Iotalied C181 957 (200506 - £224 037,
relating 1o 38 officers). (Al 2005/06 balances are restated )

10(b) Intra-government balances

Amounts falling Amounts falling

due within one year due after one year

£'000 £'000 £'000 000

Restated Restated

2006/07 2005/06 2006/07 2005/06

Balances with other central government bodies 35T 5013 - ~

Balances with local autharities 380 53 - =

Balances with NHS Trusts 17 15 - =

Balances with public corporations 2 367 2035 - -
and trading funds

Subtotal: intra-government balances € 281 7116 - -

Balances with bodies external to government 19 544 16 104 4212 4 464

Total debtors at 31 March 25825 23220 4212 4 484
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11 Cash at bank and in hand

2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 542 (326)
Met change in cash balances (441) B&g
Balance at 31 March 101 542
Add Office of HM Paymaster General balance in creditors (2 584) -
{2 483) 542
The following balances at 31 March are held at:
Cffice of HM Paymaster General (2 584) 276
Commercial banks and cash in hand 10 266
(2 483) 542
12 Creditors
12(a) Analysis by type
Restated
2008/07 200506
£'000 £'000
Amounts faling due within one year:
Trade creditors: non capital 632 1897
Trade creditors: capital 23 234
Other creditors 5723 7 201
Accruals and defemred income 10086 8529
Balance with Office of HM Paymasier General 2 584
Receipts payable to DWP 303 1
19 558 19 462
Amounts faling due after more than one year:
Imputed finance lease element of on-balance sheet PFI contracts 60 055 50138
Other creditors 3373 3 510
63 428 62 649
Total B2 987 82111
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iy

12{b) Intra-government balances

Amaounts falling due

Amounts falling due

within one year after one year
2006/07 2005/06 2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £°000 E'000 £'000
Balances with ather cantral governmant bodias 5626 T 306 = 5
Balances with local authorities 33 287 - -
Balances with MHS Trusts 28 29 - -
Balances with public corporations and 152 710 - =
trading funds
Subtotal: intra-government balances 5839 8342 - -
Balances with bodies external to government 13720 11120 63 428 62 649
Total creditors at 31 March 19 559 10 462 63 428 62 649
13 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Early Chair's
departure Fension by
costs Dilapidations analogy Other Total
£'000 000 E'000 £'000 £°000
Balance at 1 April 2006 2277 795 1052 e 4 400
Increase in provision 1678 1008 244 21 2951
Provisions not required (37) (234) - - {131)
wiitten back
Amounts utilised (1211) - (26) (77) {1 .314)
Unwinding of discount 30 - - - 30
Balance at 31 March 2007 27ar 1 669 1270 260 5936

Early departure costs

HSE meets the additional costs of benefits beyond the normal PCSPS benefits in respact of employees whao
retire early by paying the required amounis annually to PCSPS over the period between earhy depariure and
normal retirement date. HSE provides for this in full when the early retirement programme becomes binding
on HSE by establishing a provision for the estimated payments discounted by the Treasury discount rate

of 2.2% in real terms. In past years HSE paid some of its liability for earty retirement in advance and the

balance remaining is treated as a prepayment.

Legal claims

Provision has been made for various legal claims against HSE. The provision (which is included in "othear’)
reflects all known claims where legal advice indicates that it is more than 50% probable that the claim will
be successiul and the amount of the claim can be reliably estimated. No reimbursement will be received in

respect of any of these claims,

Legal claims which may succeed but are less likely to do 5o or cannot be refiably estimated are disclosed

az contingent liabilities in Mote 23,

I
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15 Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

15(a) Reconciliation of operating cost to operating cash flows 2006/07 zm
£°000 £'000
Met operating cost 232 846 238 157
Adjust for non-cash transactions (10 519) (10 024)
Adjust for movernents in working capital other than cash B 4 522 (5 921)
Less movernents in creditors not through Operating Cost Statement am L
Addjust for movement in creditors more than one year 137 (3 5100
Interest elamant of finance lease payrment (924) {1 707)
Use of provisions 13 1313 1534
Met cash outflow from operating activities 227 676 217 524
15(b) Analysis of capital expenditure and financial investrment
Purchase of fived assets T 586 6411
Proceads of disposal of fixed assels (313) (1 058)
Net cash cutflow from investing activities 7273 5 353
15{c) Analysis of financing and reconciliation
to the net cash requirement
From DWP 231 622 223 745
Decreasafincreasa) in cash 3025 (B58)
Adjustment for payments and receipts not related to supply
Amounts due to DWP
- received in a prior year and paid over 1) (1)
- received and not paid over 303 1
Met cash requirement 234 949 222 87T
Reconciliation of net cash outflow as per Note 11 to movement in cash as
per Cash Flow Statement
2006/07
£°000
Met Cash inflow (outflow) as per Note 11 (441)
Balance with Office of HM Paymaster General (2 584)
(Decreasa)/increase in cash in the period as per Cash Flow Statement (3 025)
16 Capital commitments
2006/07 2005/06
£000 £'000
Contracted commitrents for which no provision has been made 533 288
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17 Losses and special payments

2006/07 200506 2006/07 2005/06

No. of Cases Mo, of Cases £'000 £'000

Cash 4 12 2 5

Claims abandoned 240 180 354 183
Administrative losses - -

Fruitless paymenis 25 46 14 13

Stores 1 1 102 222

Special payments a6 36 24 20

306 it 496 453

Mote: Special payments made by HSE to stalf and members of the public totalled 36 cases in 200607 to the value of

£24 420.52.

18 Commitments under non-PFl operating leases

At 31 March 2007 HSE was committed to making the following payments during the nesd year, analysed

according to the period in which the lease expires:

2006/07 200506

Land and Lamd and
buildings Other buildings Other
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Leases expiring within:

One year 82 = a2 3
After one year but not more than five years 1681 2 1179 2

More than five years 9 571 - 8334
11 334 2 4 605 +]

19 Commitments under non-PFl finance leases

HSE doas not currently have any obligations under non-PFI finance leases.

73
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20 General Fund

The General Fund represents the total assets less liabilities of each of the entities within the accounting
boundary, 1o the extent that the totalis not represented by other reserves and financing items.

Restated
2006/07 2005/06
£°000 £000
Balance at 1 April 18 381 31 496
Met operating cost for the year (Operating Cost Statement) (232 B46) (238 157)
Met parkarmentary funding 231 622 223745
Transterred to general fund in respect of realised element of
revaluation resene (Note 14) 337 618
Release from general fund (Chairman's pension) {158) (337)
Release from general fund (other) 130 -
Man-cash charges and receipts (DWP senices) - ar
Cost of capital 1007 1161
Assets transferred to OGDs - (42)
Balance at 31 March (Balance Sheet) 18 473 16 381
21 Related party transactions

The Health and Safety Executive is an Executive Mon-Depantmental Public Body with Crown status and is
sponsored by DWE

DWP is regarded as a related party. During the year, HSE had several transactions with WP that
mainty related to the provision of pension services and premises costs. HSC and HSE did not have material
transactions with other entities for which DWF is regarded as the parent Departrment.

In addition, HSE had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other
cantral government bodies, The significant transactions have been with the Cabinet Office, Department for
Erwironment, Food and Rural Affairs, Depariment of Health, Department for Transport, Department of Trade
and Industry. Health Protection Agency. Treasury Solicitor, Ministry of Defence, Office for National Statistics,
Office of the Rail Regulator, and UK Atomic Energy Authorily (UKAEA) Fusion. Transactions mainly relate to
premises, research, training, computer, legal serices and administrative expendifure together with relevant
income from the provision of health and safety advice and senices. Nona of the Executive members, the
Cheef Executive or senior managers, or any person connected with these, had any interest in any material
transactions with HSE or received benefits from HSE suppliers during the year.

22 Commitments under PFI contracts

Off-balance sheet

HSE has entered into two contracts let under the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) that have been assessed
under Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 5 ag being off HSE's balance sheet. The intention of the contracts
is that the majority of the risks are transferred to the party best able to manage them and in these cases this
15 the private sector supplier.

Merseyside Headquarters (Redgrave Court)

HSE has signed a 30-year 'design, build, finance and operate’ contract with Kajima Development (Bootle
Accommeodation Partnerships) Ltd for the provision of fully serviced accommodation in Bootle, Merseyside.
The contract runs from October 2003 to May 2035. The estimated capital value of the contract is £60 milion.
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IT Services

HSE have strearmlined the management of its IT senvice by placing all of its IT sarvices with a single
strategic pariner who will have responsibility for delivery and end to end service. In June 2001, HSE signed
a ter-year confract with a partner (LogicaCMG with Computacenter as the key subcontractor) for the
provision of information and communications technology and information strategy (1S) service across all HSE
sites and to all HSE users. The estimated capital value of the contract is £26.5 million.

Charge to the Operating Cost Statement and future commitments

The total amount charged in the Operating Cost Statement in respect of off-balance sheet PFI transactions
was £27 772 714 (2005/06 - £25 436 403); and the payments to which HSE is committed during 2007/08,
analysed by the perod during which the commitment expires, are as follows:

2007/08 200607

£'000 £'000

Expiry within 1 yiear - .

Expiry within 2 to 5 years 16 018 -

Expiry within & to 10 years : 18 470
Expiry within 11 1o 15 years }
Expiry within 16 1o 20 years 2
Expiry within 21 10 25 years .

Expiry within 26 to 30 years T 925 7 BE5

On-balance sheet

With effect from 28 October 2004, HSL took occupation of seniced accommodation for laboralory and
support functions provided under a 32 years and 29 weeks term ‘design, build, finance and operate’
contract with Investors in the Community (Buxton) (ICB) Lid.

The transactions arising out of this contract have been accounted for in accordance with Technical note
no.1 (Revised), entitied How to Account for PFI Transactions as required by the FReM. Az the balance of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the PFI property, situated at Harpur Hill, Buxton, is borne by HSL, rather
than the PFI provider, ICB Ltd, the buildings and furniture provided under the contract are included in HSLl's
balance sheet as fixed assets. The liabdity to pay for these assels is in substance a finance lease obligation.
Contractual payments comprise an imputed finance lease charge and a service charge.

As part of the PFI contract, HSL handed over all of the land and buildings at the Sheffield site 10 ICE Lid,
and a prepayment for their fair value of £4.6 milion, as determined by the contract, is recognised in the
accounts and amortised evenly over the life of the PFI contract.

The Accourts are preparad on the basis that the economic effect of granting a lease at Buxton fo
ICE Ltd is not material because the difference between the existing use value of the freehold land at Buxton
as at 31 March 2007 and the value of the reversionary interest in the freehold land as at October 2034, is
not significant, given the location of, and potential uses for, the Buxton site.

=3
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Imputed finance lease obligations under on-balance sheet PFl contracts comprises:

2007/08 2006/07

£°000 £'000

Rentals due within 1 year 4 871 4 B73
Rentals due after 1 but within 2 years 4 B84 4 Tod
Fentals due after 2 years but within 5 years 15 806 16 263
Fentals due after 5 years but within 10 vears 29702 28 799
Rentals dua after 10 years but within 15 years 34 228 a3 an
Rentals due after 15 yaars but within 20 years 39 044 as 092
Rentats due after 20 years but within 25 years 44 411 43 279
Rentals due after 25 years but within 30 years 25 081 34412
Subtotal 198 027 202 592
Less interaest ehament (137 873) (143 454)
Total 60 054 59 138

Charge to the Operating Cost Statement and future commitments

The total amount charged to H5L's Income and Expenditure account in respect of the senvice element of
on-balance sheet PRI transactions was £3 323 252, (2005/06 — £3 215 603), bath figures adjusted to
include releass of prepayment of £153 400, and, subject to ICEB Ltd achieving contracted levals of service
and availability, the value of the payments to which HSL is committed in respect of the following financial

VEar s
2006/07 2005/06
£°000 £'000
Expiny within 26 to 30 years 3304 3170

23 Contingent liabilities

HSE is currently defending two equal-pay cases. In Ogtober 2003, HSE successiully appealed at an
Employment Appeal Tribwnal against an Employment Tribwnal decision handed down in July 2002, That
appeal was subject to cross appeal and in October 2004 the Court of Appeal referred a point of law to the
European Court of Justice (EGJ). The ECJ judgment was handed deown in October 2008, following which
the Court of Appeal remitted the case back to the Employment Tribunal for a rehearing. No date has yet
been fixed for this rebearning.

Towards the end of the 2005/06 financial year, both HSL and a main contractor engaged by HSL,
received claims alleging that injuries had been incurred by an employee of a sub-contractor engaged
by the main contractor to work on HEL's site at Buxton. The matter remaing the subject of both a police
investigation and a HSE investigation, the confidential nature of which means that HSL is still awaiting further
information o enable it to assess its position with regard to any potential liability.

HSE is defending a claim for compensation brought by a small number of staff which alleges that
HSE is in breach of contract and that those breaches are ongoing. The basis of their claim is that in 2004
HSE imposed a new pay system without their agreement, which financially disadvantaged them, HSE is
defending the case which is due to be heard at an Employment Trbunal in June 2007,
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24 Financial instruments

FRS 13 (Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments) requines disclosure of the role which financial
instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking

its activities. Because of the largely non-trading nafure of our activities and the way in which government
bodies are financed, HSE is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Moreover,
financial instruments play a much more Bmited role in their ability to create or change risk than would be
typical of the listed companies to which FRS 13 mainly applies. HSE has no powers to bomow or invest
surplus funds and financial assets and Kabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities and are
not held to change the risks facing HSE in undertaking its activities,

Financial assets

These are non-interest-bearing imprests and advances to staff faling due atter more than one year, as
datalled in Mote 10. As at 31 March 2007, the weighted average period to maturily was 4.4 years
(2005/06 = 4.8 years).

Foreign currency risk

HSE's exposure to foreign currency risk is not significant, The foreign exchange loss for 2006/07 was

£1 580 (£7 453 for 2005/06). Disclosure of debtors and creditors due and payable after one year is made n
the respective Motes to the Accounts.

Fair values

The fair values of HSE's financial assets have been calculated as £126 202 at 31 March 2007 {£170 082
al 31 March 2006). The basis of fair valuation has been to discount cash flows by the real rate set by
H Treasury ([currenthy 2.2%).

Liquidity risk
HSE's nat revenue resource requirements are financed by resources voted annually by Parliament. HSE is
not therefore exposead to significant kguidity risk.

Interest rate risk and profile
All of HSE's financial assets and liabilities carry nil rates of interest and hence are not exposed to significant
interast rate nsk.
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